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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Anzen India Energy
Yield Plus Trust (“the InvIT"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then
ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total
Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (‘NDCFs") of the InvIT for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes (hereafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Requlation, 2014 as amended
including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (the “InvIT Regulations™), in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, to the extent inconsistent with InvIT Regulations, of the state of
affairs of the InvIT as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
cash movements and its movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31,
2023, its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, its total returns at fair value and the
net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the InvIT in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
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separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and loans given to subsidiaries (as described in
Note 19 of the standalone financial statements)

The InvIT has significant investments | Our audit procedures included, among others, the
in subsidiaries and has granted loans | following:
to its subsidiaries amounting to INR

22,700.41 million as at March 31, ¢ Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested
2023. The value of investments and the operating effectiveness of controls over
loans in aggregate comprise 97% of assessment of impairment of investments in
total assets in the Balance Sheet. subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries and the

assumptions used by management.
The subsidiaries are in the business of
owning and maintaining transmission | e Obtained and read the valuation report of the

assets and have entered into InvIT's independent valuation expert, and
Transmission Services Agreement assessed the expert's competence, capability
("TSA™) with Long Term Transmission and objectivity.

Customers ("LTTC™).
e Involved our subject matter experts to perform

At each reporting period end, an independent review of methodology,
management assesses the existence estimates and key assumptions (weighted

of impairment indicators of average cost of capital, debt equity ratio,
investments in subsidiaries and loans forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in
given to subsidiaries. In case of the valuation by the Company's independent
existence of impairment indicators, valuation expert.

the investment and loan balances are
subjected to impairment test, where e Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues

the fair value of the subsidiary is considered in the respective valuation models
compared with the value of are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and
investments and loans given to such evaluated the reasonableness of cost and
subsidiaries. revenue attributes considered in forecast.

The processes and methodologies for | ¢  Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and

assessing and determining the fair validity of the data used in the calculations.
value of the subsidiary is based on
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

complex assumptions, that by their
nature imply the use of
management’s judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating
to the period covered by the
respective subsidiary’s transmission
license, debt equity ratio, cost of
debt, cost of equity, residual value,
etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity
of the assumptions used in
determination of fair values, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included
in the standalone financial statements.

Classification of unit holders’ funds as equity

(as described in Note 19 of the standalone financial statements)

The InvIT is required to distribute to
Unitholders not less than ninety
percent of its net distributable cash
flows for each financial year.
Accordingly, a portion of the
unitholders’ funds contains a
contractual obligation of the Trust to
pay to its Unitholders cash
distributions. The Unitholders' funds
could therefore have been classified
as compound financial instrument
which contains both equity and
liability components in accordance
with Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation. However,
in accordance with SEBI Circulars No.
CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated
October 20, 2016 and No.
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated
November 29, 2016 ("SEBI
Circulars™) issued under the InvIT
Regulations, the unitholders' funds
have been classified as equity in
order to comply with the mandatory
requirements of Section H of

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Obtained and read the requirements for
classification of financial liability and equity
under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation and evaluated the provisions of
SEBI Circulars for classification/presentation of
unit holders’ funds in the financial statements of
an Infrastructure Investment Trust.

Evaluated the disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements for compliance
with the relevant requirements of InvIT
regulations.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Annexure A to the SEBI Circular dated
October 20, 2016 dealing with the
minimum disclosures for key financial
statements.

Considering the judgment required
for classification of unit holders’
funds as equity and liability, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total

Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT requlations

(as described in Note 19 of the standalone financial statements)

The InvIT is required to disciose
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value
and Statement of Total Returns at
Fair Value pursuant to SEBI circulars
issued under the InvIT regulations
which requires fair valuation of the
assets. Such fair valuation has been
carried out by the independent valuer
appointed by the InvIT.

For the purpose of the above, fair
value is determined by forecasting
and discounting future cash flows.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair
value is based on complex
assumptions, that by their nature
imply the use of the management's
judgment, in particular with reference
to identification of forecast of future
cash flows relating to the period
covered by the respective
subsidiary's transmission license,
debt equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of
equity, residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity
of the assumptions used in

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

e Read the requirements of InvIT regulations for
disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets
at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at
Fair Value.

e Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over
assessment of fair value and the assumptions
used by management.

e Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over
preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair
Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value as per InvIT regulations and the
assumption used by management.

e Obtained and read the valuation report of the
InvIT's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert’s competence, capability
and objectivity.

e Involved our subject matter experts to perform
an independent review of methodology,
estimates and key assumptions (weighted
average cost of capital, debt equity ratio,
forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in
the valuation by the Company’'s independent
valuation expert.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

determination of fair values, this is
considered as a key audit matter. e Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues
considered in the respective valuation models
are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and
evaluated the reasonableness of cost and
revenue attributes considered in forecast.

e Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and
validity of the data used in the calculations.

e Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included
in the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager™) is
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Management of the Investment Manager (‘the Management') is responsible for the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position as at March 31, 2023, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and the movement of the unit holders’ funds for the year ended March 31,
2023, the net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the total returns at fair value of the
InvIT and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the year ended March 31, 2023 in
accordance with the requirements of the InvIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent
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not inconsistent with InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate controls for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of InvIT to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the InvIT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the InvIT's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the InvIT's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the InvIT’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the InvIT to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
- planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the InvIT for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March
31, 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone
financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but
have not been subject to audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are in agreement with the books
of account;

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations.

ForSRBC&COLLP
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Partner
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

All amounts in Rupees million unless othenwise stated

| Notes’ s Pl i
Particulars otes arc| , 2022
March 31, 2023 (Refer Note 30)
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investmants 3 11,386.41
(i) Loans 4 11,314.00
(iil) Other financial assets 5 0.75
(b) Income tax assets (net) 1.92
Total non-current assets 22,703.08
(2) Current assets
{a} Financial assets
{i) Investments 3 472.84
(ii) Cash and cash equivalants 6 4.10
(iii) Bank balances other than (6) above 7 176.24
(iv) Other financial assets 5 0.11
Total current assets 653.29
Total assets 23,356.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Unit capital 8 15,624.79
(b) Other equity 9 272.87
Total equity 15,897.66
LIABILITIES
{1) Nan-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 7,416.24
Total nan-current liabilities 7.416.24
(2) Current liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(3] total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -
(b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1 23.86
and small enterprises :
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 167
{b) Other current liabilities 13 16.94
Total current liabilities 42.47
Tatal equity and liabilities 23,356.37

Summary of significant accaunting policies.

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended March 31,2023
Allamounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

For the period from
Year ended November 01,2021
rticu N ,
pestialls oheE March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
(Refer Note 30)

INCOME
Revenue from aperations 14 668.29
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 13.49 -
Income from investment in mutual funds 24.33
Total income 706.11 .
EXPENSES
Finance costs 15 210.31
Legal and professional fees 111 -
Annual listing fee 2.62 .
Rating fee 2.66 -
Valuation expenses 0.90 =
Trustee fee 0.64 -
Audit fees
- Statutory audit fees 2.97 -
- Other services (including certification) 0.15 -
Other expenses 16 0.91 -
Total expenses 222,27 -
Profit before tax 483.84 -
Tax expense:
{I) Current tax 17 15,05 -
(i) Deferred tax . .
Profit for the year [A] 468.79 -
Other Comprehensive Incame
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
Total other camprehensive incame for the year, net of tax [B] - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+B] 468,79 F
Earnings per unit {Rs. per unit)
Basic and diluted 18 7.68 -
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
ForSRBCR COLLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

For the period from
particulars Year ended November 01,2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
. {Refer Note 30)
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 483.84 -
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits (13.49) -
income from investment in mutual funds (24.33) -
Finance costs 21031 -
Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries {556.74) -
Finance income on non-canvertible debentures (20.65) -
Finance income on optionally-convertible debentures {90.90} -
Operating loss before working capital changes {11.96) -
Working capital adjustment
{Increase) / Decrease in other assets (0.75) -
Increase / {Decrease) in trade payabies 23.85 -
Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities 16.93 -
Cash flow generated from operations 28.08 -
Income tax (paid} / refund received (net) (16.97} -
Net cash flow from operating activities [A] 1111 -
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of OCD of subsidiaries {2,840.00) -
Purchase of NCD of subsidiary {281.00) '
Loan given to subsidiaries {11,940.00} -
Loan repaid by subsidiaries 626.00
Proceeds from maturity of fixed depaosits 8,752.17 -
Investment in fixed deposits (8,928.41) -
investment in mutual funds {6,318.56} -
Proceeds from sale of investment in mutual funds 5,870.05 .
Interest received on loan given to subsidiaries 556.74 .
Interest received on Optionally convertibie debentures 135.49 ~
Interest received on Non convertible debentures 20.65
Interest received on investment in fixed deposits 13.38 -
Net cash flow used in investing activities [B}] {14,343.49} -
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Unit capital* 7,500.00 | -
Proceeds from non convertible debentures 7.500.00 E
Payment of Unit issue expenses (175.21) -
Payment of Interest on non convertible debentures (292.39) -
Payment of distributions to unithclders {195.92) -
Net cash flow from financing activities [C] 14,336.48 -
Net increase / {decrease]) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 4.20 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.10 .

flow since it was a non-cash transaction.

*The Trust has issued its units smounting to Rs. 8,200 million in exchange of the equity shares of NRSS and DMTCL. The same has not been reflected in cash

For the period from

Components of cash and cash equivalents: Year ended November 01,2021
po s 9 ) March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30}

Balances with banks :

- On current accounts 4.10 -
- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 maonths - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 4.10 -




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
Allamounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities (including current maturities)

F
Particulars Yaar ended l:t:::;:::i :: ;::::
March 31, 2023 !
to March 31, 2022
Opening total borrowlngs (including interest accrued but not due) -
Cash flow
- Interest paid (292.39)
- Proceeds/(repayments) 7,500.00
Interest accrued 294.06
Others (ancillary borrowing cost) (83.76)
Closing total borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 7,417.91

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Standalone Statement of Changes in Unit holders’ Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

A. Unit capital

Particulars Number of units Amount

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 30)
Units issued during the year (refer note 8) - .
As at March 31, 2022 - =

Units issued during the year (refer nota 8) 158.00 15,800.00
Issue expenses . (175.21)
As at March 31, 2023 158.00 15,624.79

B. Other equity

]

Particulars Retained earnings Total

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 30)
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Profit for the year 468.79 468.79

Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Distribution during the year (refer note below) 1195.92) (195.92)
As at March 31, 2023 272.87 272.87
Note:

The distribution during the year does not include the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2022-23 which will be paid after March 31, 2023,

The distributions made by Anzen to its unithalders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Anzen under the InvIT Regulations and
hence part of the same includes repayment of capital as well.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBCR& COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Company Secretary
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20,

Regulations)

A

=

M

-

]

Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2023 (refer note 2 below)

2016 and No, CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued under the InviT

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Book Value Fair Value

A, Assets 23,356.37 24,211.48
8. Liabilities {at book value) 7,458.71 7,458.71
C . Net Asset Value (A-B) 15,897.66 16,752.77
D. Number of units 158.00 158.00
E. NAV (C/D) 100.62 106.03
Notes:

Project wise break up of Fair value of Assets as at March 31, 2023 [Rs. in Millian)

Particulars Fair Value

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ("DMTCL" )it 13,849.80

NRSS XXX| (B) Transmission Limited [“NRSS")# 10,337.42

Sub total 24,187.22

InviT Assets 653.18

Payable to EIYP* (628.92)

Total Assets 24,211,448

# The Trust has acquired DMTCL and NRSS with effect from November 11, 2022,
*Pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement, the entire economic and beneficial interest in all amounts due (net of tax) to the SPVs as per the CERC

Qrder pertaining to period prior to and including March 31, 2022 (including any amounts received as one-
petition) is vested with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus(EIYP) and u

pon receipt of the amounts (or any pa

SPVs. Accordingly, the same has not been considered in fair value of Assets.

Fair values of total assets (including project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS
based salely on the fair valuation report dated May 23, 2023 of

Regulations.

Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (refer note 1 below)

time settlements for issues raised in the
rt thereof) shall be transferred to EIYP by

of fair value of total assets) as at March 31, 2023 as disclosed above are
the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the InviT

(Rs. in Million)
[Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2023
Tatal Comprehensive Income (As per the Statement of Profit and Loss) 46879
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income 855,11
Total Return 1,323.90

Notes:

. Fair value of assets as at March 31, 2023 and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in

the above tables are based on fair

valuation report dated May 23, 2023 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the InvIT Regulations.

As per our report of even date

FarSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati%ﬂln: 324982€/E300003

pA Amit Singh
Partner
Membership Number : 408859

Place ; Pune
Date : May 25, 2023

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
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Ranjita Deo
ClO & Whole-time Director
DIN No. : 096059160

]
Poo2
lalpa Parekh

Company Secretary

Membership Number ; A24507

Place : Pune
Date : May 25, 2023

. Sensitivity analysis with respect ta significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurment has been disclosed in Note 21
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-
Vaibhav Doshi
Chief Financial Officer




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

{SEBI Circular No. C!R/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 28, 2016 issued

under the InvIT Regulations)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

{Rs in Million}

Description

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest / accrued interest / additional interest

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen Trust
and/ or redemption of debentures issued by SPVs to the Anzen Trust "

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as
permitted, subject to applicable law

Inflow from Investments / Assets

Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts
reinvested or planned to be reinvested .

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such
proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently

Inflow from Liabilities

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of Lnits,
etc.

Other inflows

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deemed necessary by the!
Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen
Trust

712.87

626.00

15,000.00

35.09

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level {A)

16,373.96

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes
"iLess: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to
the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc.

Less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and / or payment of other statutory dues

Outflow for Liabilities
Less: Repayment of third-party debt {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of
any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc.

Outflow for Assets
{Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs

Manager in compliance with the InviT Regulations
Less: investments including acquisition of other SPVs
Other Outflows

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may be
due in future

Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan agreements
in refation to the Anzen Trust
Less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the irvéstment
Manager
Add [ Less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting
of the same item for the above calculations

Total cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust level {B)

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the Investment!

{438.76)

(15.05)

(155.00)

{15,071.00)} .

(15,782.28}

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = {A+B}

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year.

591.68
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a)

Trust information

Anzen indiz Energy Yield Plus Trust {“the Trust” or “Anzen”) is an irrevocable trust settled by Sekura Energy Private Limited {the “Sponsor” } on November 01, 2021 pursuant to the Trust
Deed under the provisions of the Indlan Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Exchange Board of India {"SEBI") under the SEBI (Infrastructure investment Trust) Regulanans, 2014 as
an Infrastructure Investment Trust on January 18, 2022 having registration number IN/InviT/21-22/0020. The Trustee of Anzen is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the “Trustee™). The'
Investment manager for Anzen is Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {the "Investment Manager” or the “Management”), The objectives of Anzan are to undertake activities as an
infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of the inviT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Anzen is to own and invest in power transmission
assets and renewable energy assets in india with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unithalders.

As at March 31, 2023, Anzen has following project entities (*Special Purpose Vehicles” or “SPVs”) whlch are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and

Maintain {'BOOM’)-basis:

1. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL')

2. NRSS XXX!(B) Transmission Limited {"NRSS')

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Plot 294/3, Edelwelss House, off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz - East. Mumbai 400058, Maharashtra, India,
The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on May 25, 2023,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Trust and comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {"NDCFs'} for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{1}(a} of the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended),
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Ind AS”) read with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regu!atlons 2014, as amended and the circufars issued thereunder
{“InvIT Regulations™).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair vaiue,

5 y of significant ac ing polities

The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Trust in preparing its financial statements:

Current versus non-current classmcatron

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash ar cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting pericd
All other assets are classified as nan-current.

- A lisbility is current when:

k)

« 11is expected to be settled in normai operating cycle

« Itis held primarily for the purpase of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditicnal right to defer the settlement of the liakility for at lezst twelve months after the repcrting pericd

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. .
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Trust has identified twelve months as its operating

cycle;

Foreign currencies
The Trust’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional currency. The Trust does not have any foreign operation and has assessed the functional currency of the Trust to
be INR.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in fareign currencies are initially recorded by the entity at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functicnal currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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c)

d}

e).

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the. price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: .

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Teust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
econamic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a noa-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ablht‘/ to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

. inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as fallows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole: .

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- Valuation techniques far which the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3 -Valuation techniques far which the iowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recagnised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Trust determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair‘va!ue measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At-each reporting date, the management analyses the movement of assets and liabifities which are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Trust's accounting policies, For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to.determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Trust has determined classes of assets and liabilities an the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of

the fair value hierarchy, as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value refated disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
* Quantitative disclesures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note 21}

» Investment in quoted mutual fund (note 3)

= Finanuial instrumants {including those carried at amortised cost) {note 20}

« Disclosures of statement of Net Assets at fair value and statement of Total returns at fair value

Revenue .
The specific recagnition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognised,

Interest income

For 3ll debt instruments measured at amortised cosi, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or s sharter period, where apgrapriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
a financial liability. Wher calculating the effective interest rate, the Trust estimates the expected cash flows by considering 2!l the cantractual terms cf the financial instrument {for example
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the yearin which it is declared, whereby the Trust’s right to receive is established.

Taxes

Current income tax ) X

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss {either in other comprehensive incame or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in CClor directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positians taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided usmg the liability method on tempcrary differences between the tax bases of assets and lizbilities and the:r carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alt taxable temparary differences, except:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

= In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be cantrolled and it is probabie that the temporary differences will not reverse in the fareseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible ternporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax lasses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Ilablhty in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; . .

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, assaciates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable prafit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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f

g

h)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsat if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same
taxable Trust and the same taxation authority.
Sales/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except: .

» When the tax incurred on 3 purchase of assets or services is not recoverable frem the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisitior: of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

« When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing casts directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Trust incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Impairment of non current financial assets

The Trust assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Trust estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
When the carrying amount of an asset ar CGU exceeds its recaverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value'in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inta account, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation madel is used. These calculations are corrobarated by valuation muitiples, quoted share prices for pubticly raded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Trust bases its impairment calculations on detailed budget and forecast calculations, These budgets are prepared for the entire project life.

Impairment iosses of continuing operatians are recognised in the statement of prafit and ioss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Trust estimates the asset’s or CGU's recaverable amount. A previously recognised impairment lcss is reversed only if there has been 3 change in the assumptions used 10
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recagnised when the Trust has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as'a result of a past evént, it is probable that an autflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and 3 reliable estimate can be made of the 2mount of the obhgatxom

When the Trust expects some or all of a provision ta be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or foss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 3 current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific ta the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 3 finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for, (i} Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Trust, or {ii} Present obligations arising from past
events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation ar a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannct be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
Investments in subsidiaries

The Trust accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses {if any) in its separate financial statements. investments accounted for at cost which are
held for sale are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and as held for sale.
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Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

thitial r ition and ent

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular
way trades) are recognisad on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Trust’s business model for ma naging them.

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through prafit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Trust has applied the pracncal expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d}
Revenue from contracts with customers.

Subsegquent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i Debt instruments at amortised cost .

i, Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOC!)

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPLY
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOC)}

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amartised cost if both the following conditions are met:

8] The asset is held within 3 business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount qutstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Trust, After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amartisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,This category generally applies to interest receivable and loans
given to subsidiaries (Refer Note 4}. .

Financial assets at fair vatue thraugh OCI {FVTOCI} {debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset’ is classified as the FYTOCH if both of the following criteria are met:

a} The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s cantractual cash flaws represent SPP!.

Oebt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OC!}, However, the Trust recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in CCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss, Interest eared whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.The Trust does not have financial assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCI.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCi [equity instruments}

Ugan initial recogrition, the Trust can lect to classify irrevacably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at falr value through GCi when they meet the definitian of equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determinad on ar: instrument- -by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which zre heid fer
trading and contingent consideration reccgnised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL,

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OC! are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPLIs a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FYTOC, is classified as at FVTPL.
In addition, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amcrtised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allawed only if daing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’), The Trust has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Trust’s balance sheet} when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Trust has transferred its rights ta receive cash flaws from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a} the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Trust has neither transferred nor retained substznna!ly alt
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 3 pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nar retained substantially al! of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Trust continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Trust's continuing invalvement. In that case, the Trust also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated

- liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Trust has retained,

impairment of financial assets

Majority of the financial assets of the Trust which are not reflected at fair value pertain to loans to subsidiaries and other receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Trust does not
foresee any credit risk on its loans and other receivables which may cause an impairment. Majority of the other receivable pertain to receivable from subsidiary companies only, Also, the
Trust does not have any history of impairment of other receivables.

For the f§na ricial assets which are reflected at fair value, no further impairment allowance is necessary as they reflect the fair value of the relevant financial asset itself,
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and barrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hadge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Trust's financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in twa categories:
* Financial Fabilities at fair value through profit or loss

* Financial liabilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss )

Financiai liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial lizbilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost {Loans and borrowings) .

This is the categary most relevarit to the Trust. After initial recognition, interést-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking intc account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. '

This categery generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 10.

Derecognition .

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial liabifities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business medel for managing thase assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Trust’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant tg
the Trust’s cperations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to
its operations. If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectivély from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
foliowing the change in business model. The Trust does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The fallowing table shows various reclassificaticn and how they are accounted for:

. . . Revised .
Original classification . . Accounting treatment
classification
. Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
Amartised cost FVTPL . N . X P ;
value is recognised in profit or {oss,
. Fair vaiue at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on
FVTPL Amoaortised Cost = . ’ g rving ame
the new gross carrying amount. .
. Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference hetween previous amortised cost and fair
Amortised cost FVTOCH P

value is recognised in OCl. Na change in EiR due to reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
FVTOCH Amortised cost cumulative gain or loss in OCl is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as
if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustment s
reqguirad.

Assets continue t be measured a5 fair value. Zumiilative gain or loss previously recognized in OCH s
reclassified from equity to profit or loss the reclassification date,

FVTPL VTGO

FVTOC! FVTPL
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k)

m

-

n)‘

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intentian to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subjact to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, 35 defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Trust’s cash management.

Cash distribution to unit holders
The Trust recognises a fiability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised, and a legal obligation has been created. As per the InvIT Regulations, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unitis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes if any) by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of Units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, split, and reverse salit {consolidation of units} that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Comgpanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, appliczble
from April 1, 2023. These amendments are not expected ta have any significant impact in the Trust's standalone financial statements.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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3

ia

[t

(c)

(d,

<=

a

Investments
Non-Tyrram
. Asat
Particulars As at Marzh 31, 2023 March 31, 2622
{Refer Note 30}
[a) Equity investments, at cost {unguoted)
Darbf - Motihasi Tr Company Limited (16,236,661 equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up) - 5,453.00
Irefar note ¢ and note d)
NRSS XKXi (8} Traasmission Limited {9,832,137 equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up} {refer note c and note d) 4,13287
b} Non-convertible deb { {at ised cost}
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (291,000 of 16% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 291.00 -
each fully paid up) {refer ncte a)
[c} Optionally convertible deb {u d} (at cost}
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (87,710,000 of 18% Optionally corivertible debentures of Rs. 877.10 .
10 each fully paid up) (refer note b and ¢}
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited {63,243,500 of 18% Optionally coavertible debentures of Rs. 10 each fully paid | 632,44 .
up) (refer ngte b and ¢} !
11,386.41 »
Non Convertible debenture {NCD) of Face value of Rs. 1,000 each were issued by DMTCL The NCD are redeemable at the option of the NCD halder anytime out of cash
surpius, but If the NCD holders do not exercise their right of redeeming the NCDs, the same are due for repayment at the and of March 2030, .
Ogtionally convertidle debentures {OCD) of Face value of Rs. 10 each were issued by DMTCL and NRSS.
The OCD Holders, subject to necessary approvals as needed and any shareholding restrictions under the TSA to which the Barrower is a party, have the option t convert the
QCD atany time before the Final Redemption Date subject to the terms of the and report and app law,
The OCD are redeemable at the optian of the OCD holder anytime out of cash surplus,
Uder ind AS, for these optianally convertible d the difference b transaction cost and fair value calculated by present vatue of all future cash receipts
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest has been reclassified as investment in equity of the subsidiary.
The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI{B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('€1YP'} pursuant to share p g! dated on ber 01, 2022 and sub: sent closing on 11, 2022 The Trust
issued its units amounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively.
Detile of the subsidianies argas foliows:
Ccuntry of incerparation! Ownershig interest%
Name of subsidiary Asat
As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Reter Note 30)
iDirectly held by the Trust:
1Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Campany Limited India 100%: -
NASS XXX (B} Transmission Limilad India 1G0%: >
Lurrent
Asat Aot
Particul 1, 20;
articulars March 31, 2023 Mat:h 31,2022
{Refer Note 3G)
invesiments at fair value through grofit or loss
investment in mutual funds
ABSL Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan - 800,428.32 units {March 31, 2022 : Nil) 32683 .
ABSL Overnight Fund-Growth-Direct Plan - 10,873,30 units [March 31, 2022 : Nil} 1319 .
ACICH Prudentis] Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-Growth - 398,132.91 units (March 31, 2022, 13272 :
Yot Ries -
Aggregate value of quoted investments 472,84 -
ggregate value cf i 11386841 -
Loans
Non - Current
Asat
Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 30}
{Unsecured, considered gocd)]
Loan to subsidiaries {refer note 22)* 11.314.00
Total 11.314.00 ~
Rate of Interest Secured/ unsecured Asat Asat
Details of loan to subsidiaries March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)
Darbhanga - Matihari Transmission Company Limited 16% Unsecured 6,582.50
NRSS XXXI (8]} Transmission Limited 16% Unsecured 4,731.50 .

“Loans are nen-derivative financial assets which are repayatie oy subsidiaries any time at its discretion or subject to mutual agreement between the parties. Further, the subsidiaries can prepay all
or any portion of the outstanding principal term loan (along with accrued interest} without any pre payment penalty at such terms as may be agreed between the harrower and Trust,
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5 Other flnandal assets

Asat Asat
Particulars . March 31, 2022
. March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 30)
Non - Current
{Unsecured, considerad good}
Security deposits 0875 >
Total 8.75 b
Current
{Unsecured, considered good)
Interest sccrued on fixed deposits 011 -
Total 011 -
§ Cash and cash shulvalgnts
As at
Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
Miarch 31, 2023 iRefer Note 30}
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts 4.10
Total 4.10
Balances with bank on current account does not earn inkesess,
T Bankd vther Yhan disclosed ip note § above
Asat Asar
Particula 2022
arteulars March 31, 2023 Morch 31,
{BeierNote 20y
Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity mere than 3 months but less than 12 months 2124 -
Balances with bank held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees 155.00 -
and other commitments** N
Total 17624 -

“*Fixed deposits with banks of Rs. 155.00 enifficin :sv 3t March 31, 2023 and interest accrurd thrsis of Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited {debenture trustee}

Shart-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three menths, depending on the immediate cash requirements af
the trust, and earn interest 5t tha respective short-term deposit rates,

[This space is intentionally left hlank]
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8 Equity
Unit capital
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Na. of yoits in millian Amount Ho, of pnits in million Amount

issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
Units of Rs. 100 each 158.00 15,800.00 - -
Less: Issus expenses {175.21) ‘

15,624.79 -

Note:

{a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial issue of 75,080,000 units, for cash at a price of Rs 100.00 per unit, aggregating to Rs. 7500 Million to the eligible
unitholders (as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) (the “Issue”) on private placement basis, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{infrastructure fnvestment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder. The issue opened cn November 10, 2022 and closed on
Novemnber 11,2022. Additionally, pursuant to the share purchase agreement with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Trust (“EIYP”), EIYP was allotted 83,000,000 units of
Anzen,

The InviT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {Investment Manager of Anzen), considered and approved allotment of 1,58,000,000 units to the eligible

{b} Issue expenses of Rs. 175,21 Million incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial
instruments: Presentation.

(i} Terms/Rights attached te the Units
The Trust has only one class of Units having a par value of INR 100 per Unit. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is entitled to
one vote per unit. The Unithalders have the right to recsive at ieast 30% of tha Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in each financiai year in accordance with
the InviT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves dividend distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. The
Trust declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trust and is nct entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects {or any part thereof} or any
intarest in tha projects (or any part thereof) of the Trust. A Unitholder’s right is limited to the right to require due administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions
of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management Agreement.

{#i} Details of Unitholders holding more than 5% units in the Trust
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars . R . - .
No. of units in miliion % halding Ha.of uniks in mithon % hoiding
Edeiweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 93.80 59.37% - -
Sekura Energy Private Limited 23.80 15.06% : -
Larsen & Toubro Limited 15,20 9.62% - -
132.80 84.05% - .
{iif} Reconciliation of units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting pericd
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars . o
No. of units in million Amount Ngo. of units in million Amgunt
At the beginning af the year - . R .
Add : Issued during the year 158.00 15,800.00 -
Less: [ssue expenses {refer nate {b) above) - {175.21} - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 158.00 15,624.78 - -

{s) The Trust has acquired the entire equity share cagital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI{B} Transmission Limited {'NRSS') from
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (*EIYP'} pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on November 01, 2022 and subsequent clesing on November 11, 2022, The Trust
issued its units amounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively.

{iv} The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of banus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date.

9 Othex equlty

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 30)

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year/ period -

Profit for the year/ period 468.79 -

Less: Distribution to Unit Holders (195.92) -
{Closing balance 272.87 ~

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid tc unitholders, if any.
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10 Borrowings
Non - current:

. Effective Interest "Asat Asat

Particulars Rate March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)

Borrowings at amortised cost

A, Secured

8.01% Series A Non convertible debentures 8.47% 4,450.33 -

{4500 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **

8.34% Series B Non convertible debentures 8.70% 2,965.91 «

(3000 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **

Less: current maturities of debentures - -

Total non-current borrowings 7,416.24 -

**Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 83.76 million for Series A and Series B. :

Non-current borrowings 7,416.24 -

Current borrowings

{a} Terms of borrowings

On December 01, 2022 the Trust has issued and aliotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face vaiue of Rs
1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs,750.00 million on private placement basis.

Repayment schedule of NCD

Particulars Amount Maturity date
Serjes A 4,500.00 01-12-2025
Serjes B 3,000.00 01-12-2027

{b) Security

securities reoresenting all amounts credited to the Escrow Account:

a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on ali the Isster’s current assets and other assets {excluding DSR and OSRA), both present ard future,
including: (i} all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the issuer in, to and under all the loans and advances
extended by the Issuer to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future (collectively, the “Issuer Loans”}); (ii} the receivables, right, title and interest and
benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other instruments (both present and
future} which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the lssuer with respect to the lssuer Laans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the
Common security Trustee. (ii} all bank accounts of the Issuer, including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap
Sub Account) (if any) {excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened to mest the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any
Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be opened in accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from
time to time deposited therein {including the reserves), all designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other

(i1} a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities under this Deed,

and all amounts lying therein;

(iti} a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent} of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, aptionally convertible
debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs.

(iv} pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures, non-convertible
debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s} in all the Gther SPVs and Holdco(s} {as applicable).

{c} Interest

interest shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each guarter.
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i1

Trade payobles ftarried at amortised con}

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
h 31, 20
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 30)
Teade payables
Tota! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises B o
23.86 § -
Tozal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 23.86 '-
Trade payables
- to related parties 19.90 -
~ 10 othaes 386 =
Totsi 23.86 -

Trade payables ageing schedule:

Particuiars

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

Lessthan 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2023
To4sl outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micra and small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro grtermives and small enterprises

Tobs) outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Totat

As at March 31, 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micre and smail ente rprises
Disputed dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Tutai autstanding dues of craditors other than micro entarprises and small enterprises

Tt

Details of dues tc Micrg, Small, and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devet

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act} ;

Partivalars

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30}

Principal ameur:t due to micro and small enterprises
interest due on above

Thi princigal amaunt and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier as at th# end of each

accounting year

Tha amount of intarest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 cf the MSMED Act 2066 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
Tre amount cf interest due and payable for the pericd of deiay in making payment {which ha
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

Tha amount of further interest “emaining due and payabia even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actual

ve been paid but beyord the appointed day during the year) but

by p3id to the

Trade payables are not- interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms.

For expianation on the Trust’s risk management policies, refer note 26

13

Other finzngiat liabilities
As at As at y
Particulars March 31, 2022
M )
arch 31, 2023 (Refer Note 30}
Lurrent
interast accrued but not due on borrowings 1.67 -
Totai 1.67 -
Other current liabilities
Asat
Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
1, 3
March 31, 202 {Refer Note 30}
Current
Statutory dues 16.84 -
Total 16.94 -

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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14

15

16

Revenue from operations
For the period from
A Year ended November 01,2021
Particulars
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)
interest income (refer note 22)

- on loans given to subsidiaries 556.74 4

- on non-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 20.65 -

- on optionally-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 50.80 -
Total 668.28 “
Finance costs

For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01,202}
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)
Finance cost on Non-convertible debentures 210.31
Total 210.31 -
Other expenses
For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01,2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)
Miscellaneous expenses 0.91 -
Total 0.91 ~

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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17 Tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the period are:

For the period from

particulars Year ended November 01,2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
[Refer Note 30}

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 15.05 .
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 15.05 -

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023:

For the period from
particulars Year ended November 01,2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)
Profit before tax 483.84 -
Enacted income tax rate in India 42.74% -
Computed expected tax 206.82 -
Effect of:
Impact of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust (191.76) -
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 15.05 -

Earnings per unit {EPU)

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during

the year

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units cutstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

For the period from

. Year ended November 01,2021
Particulars
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 30)

Profit after vax for calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributable to cnitholders (INR 468.79 -
miliians]

N e e Lt . " e e 61.04 -
Weighted sversge number of units in calulating basic and diluted samings pee unit {Mo. in million}
Face vaiue per unit fin INR} 100 -
Basic snd difuted sarmings per wnit{in N 7.68 -

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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19

(a)

{b)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Trust’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future pericds.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. .

Classification of Unitholders’ funds

Under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations, Anzen is required to distribute to unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows of Anzen for each
financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders’ funds contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its unitholders cash distributions. The unitholders’ funds could
therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which contain both equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars {No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-Oct-2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 20186) issued under
the InvIT Regulations, the unitholders’ funds have been classified as equity in order 0 comply with the mandatory requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular
dated 20 October 2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line with the above, the distribution payable to unit holders is recognised as liability
when the same is approved by the Investment Manager.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 2 significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assats and Kabilities or fair value disclosures within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising thzt are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Circulars issued under the InviT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value {refer note 20}. in estimating the fair value of
investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independent qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management reports the valuation report and findings
to the Board of the Investment Manager annually tc exglain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission grojects. The inputs to the

valuation models are taken fram cbservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. judgements
include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value.

Impairment of nan-current financiat assets

Non-current financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise of investments in subsidiaries.

The provision for impairment/(reversal) of impairment of investments in subsidiaries is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the recoverabie amaounts.
The recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries has been computed by external independent valuation experts based on value in use caiculation for the underlying
projects {based on discounted cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the recoverable amounts of individual portfolic assets computed by the valuation experts, the
Trust tests for impairment on the amounts invested in the respective subsidiary companies based on the valuation exercise so carried out, There is no impairment for the year
ended March 31, 2023. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amaunt for the underlying projects are disclosed and further explained in Note 21.

[This space is intentionaily left blank]
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20 Financial Instruments by category

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the ca rrying amounts and fair value of the Trust’s financizl instruments as of March 31, 2023 ©

Fair value through

Fair value through

profit and less

income

Particuiars Amortised cost ) other comprehensive Total carrying value Total fair value
profit and loss .

income
Financial assets
Cash and cash aguivalents 4.10 - - 4.10 4.10
Investments (including loan to subsidiaries) 22,700.41 - 22,700.41 23,555.52
Investments in Mutual funds - 472.84 - 472.84 472.84
Other bank balances 176.24 - - 176.24 176,24
Other financial assets 0.86 - - 0.86 0.86
Total 22,881.51 a72.84 - 23.354.45 24.209.56
Financial liakilities
Borrowings 7,416,24 . - 741624 7,394.03
Trade payables 23.86 - . 23.86 23.86
Other financial liabitities 1.67 ~ 1.67 1.67
Total 7.441.77 - - 7,441.77 7,419.56
Set out below is 2 comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust’s financial instruments as of March 31,2022

Fair value through Fair value through

Particulars Amortised cost other comprehensive Total carrying value Total fair value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Loans

Other bank balances
Other financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payables

QOther financial liabilities

Total

Carrying values of Investments, Leans, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payabies and other financial liakilities approximate their fair values.

2

-

Fair valua hierarchy

The falivwing table geusertz fair value hieraszy of aszaizand habilities as of
B

{Particulars

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

Quoted pricesin
active markets (Level 1}

Significant
ohservable inputs
{Level 2)

Significant
unaobservahle inputs
fLeval 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
March 31, 2022
Quoted investmeats - Investment in mutual funds

March 31, 2023
Quoted investments - Investment in mutual funds

472.84

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
March 31,2022
investment in subsidiaries lincluding loan to subsidiaries)

March 31, 2023
Investment in subsidiaries {including loan to subsidiaries)

23,555.52

JLiabilities for which fair value disclosures are given:
March 31, 2022
Borrowings

March 31, 2023
Borrowings

7,394.03

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Leve! 2 and Level 3,
Investment in mutual funds though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVs which is the quote for the day.

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Significant unobservable inputs Input for Sensitivity of input to the Increasfea/(delcrease} in
. ir value
March 31, 2023 fair value March 31,3033

WACC 7.50% to 8.55% +0.5% -1,204,00
-0.5% 1,355.00
Tax rate {normai tax and MAT) MAT -17.47% +2% -402.0C
Normai tax - 25,17% -2% 385.00
Escalation rate for expensas 2.5%to 5% +20% -220.02
-20% 184,32

{This space is intentionally left blank]
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22

a)

b)

<)

aj

bj

i)

iv)

Reiated party disclosures

List of related parties as per the requirements of ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss infrastructure Yield Plus {w.e.f. November 11, 2022}

Entity with significant influence over the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML

Subsidiaries
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {w.e.f. November 11, 2022)
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited {w.e.f. November 11, 2022}

List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1){zv) of the InviT Regulations

Parties to the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Promoters of the parties to Anzen specified in {a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Acvisers Limited (w.e.f, March 29, 2023)
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {upto March 28, 2023)
Axis Bank Limited

Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in {a) above
Directors of SEPL

Avinash Prabhakar Rao

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

Directors of ERAML

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy

Subahoo Chordia

Sunil Mitra

Prabhakar Panda {ceased to be director w.e.f. April 1, 2023)
Ranjita Deo

Shiva Kumar

Bala C Deshpande {appointed as director w.e.f. April 1, 2023)

Key Managerial Personne! of ERAML

Ranjita Deo {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi {Chief Financial Officer) {w.e.f. 1 February 2023)
lalpa Parekh (Company Secretary)

Directors of ATSL
Deepa Rath

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Ganesh Sankaran

Promoters of SEPL
Promoters of ERAML
Promoters of ERAML
Promoters of ATSL
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il Raiated party transactions:

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Name of related party For the period from
: Year ended November 01,2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
(Rafer Nota 30)
Issue of units Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 9,380.00 ) -
tssue of units Sekura Energy Private Limited 2,380.00 -
issus of units Axis Bank Limited 500.00 -
issua of NCD Axis Bank Limited 3,000.00 -
Interast expense on NCD Axis Bank Limited 73.66 ~
trigrast income on Loan given Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 313.25 -
Interest income on Loan given NRSS XXXI (8) Transmission Limited 28349
Interest income on GCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 5883 .
Interest income on OCD NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 3207
Interest income on NCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Campany Limited 20.65 -
Loan given Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 6,910.00 B
Loan given NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited S,030.00 -
Loan repaid DBarbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 327.50 .
Loan repaid NRS5 XXX! (8} Transmission Limited 298.50 -
Reimbursement of expanses Sekura Energy Private Limited 101,59 -
Retmiuesersent of expenses Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05 -
Usiit placement fees Edelweiss Financiai Services Limitad 1109 -
Arranger fees for NCD facilities Axis Bank Limited 8.83 -
Trustee Fee Axis Trustée Services Limited 0.26 -
Distribution to unit holders Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 11631 -
Distribution to unit holders Sekura Energy Private Limited 29,51 -
Distribution to unit holders Axis Bank Limited 3.97 -
Investment in Equity instruments of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yieid Plus 5,453.00 .
Investment in Equity instruments of NRSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 4,132.87 -
Irveestment in OCD of DMTCL Edeiweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 877.10 .
vestment in OCD of NRSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 632.44 -
finvestment in NCD of DMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 291.00 -
. Related parsy balances:
Particulars Mame of related party As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Receivable/ {Payable)} {Refer Naote 30)
Loan b subsidisries Darbhizngs - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 6,582.50 B
oo 20 subtidiarioy NRSS XXX! {B) Transmissiop Limited 4,731.50 -
Teads pryabies Sekura Energy Private Limited -19.5¢] -
Trode Fayasles Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited -0.0% -
Trade payaides Axis Trustee Services Limited -0.2€
Hnterest actrned 24 oot dus on berrowitgs s Bank Limited -0.66 -
Lutstanding GC5 Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 877.16 -
diag QG0 NRSS XXXI (B} Transmission Limited 632,44
Thststanding NCR Dorthangy - Metbard Transmission Comgary Limited 231.06; -

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as re

follow:

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga -
Infrastructure Yield Pius ('EIYP'} pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent clasing on 11 November 2022. The Tru:

Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million o EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in GMTCL and NRSS respectively.

Sumrsry of valuation regort

Panjculars DMECL NRSS

Entergrise-value as at 30 June 2022 12,507.00 9,897.00

erhad of valuation Discounted Cash Flw| Discounted Cash &)
EBsrdunt rate fWASS 8.45% 8:24%

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 of
Regulations.

[This space is intentionally left blank]

quired by Para 4.4(b)(iv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as

Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL) and NRSS XXXI{B) Transmission Limited ‘('NP.SS') from Edelweiss
st issued its units amounting to

the independent valuer appainted by the Investment manager under the InvIT
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23 Capital and other commitments

24

25

2

{a!

{b

o

&

The Trust has no commitments as on March 31, 2023 {March 31, 2022 : Nil).

Contingent liability-
The Trust has no centingent liability as on March 31, 2023 {March 31, 2022 : Nil).

Segment reporting .
The Trust's activities comprise of owning and investing in SPVs to generate cash flows for distribution to unitholders. Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operating
Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108 have not separately been given.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Trust’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial fiabilities is to finance the Trust's operations. The Trust's
principal financial assets include investments, loans, cash and bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its aperstions.The Trust may be exposed to market risk,
credit risk and liguidity risk. The Investment Manager oversees the management of these risks. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that
have the appropriate skills, experience and supervisian. It is the Trust's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purpases may be undertaken, The management reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.The Risk Management policies of the Trust are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust,
1o set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Trust's activities.Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust’s risk management framework.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk inciude loans and borrowings and investments,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust's berrowings are at fixed rate,
hence the Trust is not exposed to Intérest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust did not have any exposure in
foreign currency as at March 31, 2023 and as at March 31,2022,

Equity price risk

The Trust's investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those investments. Reports on the equity
pertfolio are submitted to the senior managemant on a regular basis. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. At the
reporting date, the exposure ta equity investments in subsidiary at carrying vaiue was Rs. 9,585.88 Million {March 31, 2022: Nil} . Sensitivity analyses of significant unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement are disclosec in Note 21.

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a caunterparty will not meet its cbligaticns under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Trust is expased to credit risk from its
investing activities including loans to subsidiaries, deposits with banks and other financial instruments. As at March 31, 2023, the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of
the Trust are with its subsidiaries.

[This space is intentionaily left blank}
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{c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust may encounter difficuity in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabifities that are required to be settlad by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Trust’s objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral abligations. The Trust requires funds both for short term operational needs as
well as for long term investment programs, The Trust closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It 2ims to minimise these risks by generating sufficient cash
flows from its currznt operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments will provide liquidity,
The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial fiabilities, The cther financial liabilities are with short term durations. The table below summarises the maturity profile
of the Trust's financiai liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars Ond d Less than 3months | 3 months to 1 year dvearto B years rvose than S years Tota)

As 3t March 31, 2023

Non convertible debentures {Secured) - - . 7.415.23 - 7,416.24

Trade payables N 23.86 - - » 23.86

Other financial iabiltties - 167 . - - 1.67

Interast on borrowings . 15224 459.66 1,530.96 4 2.142.86
- 172.77 459.66 8,947.20 M 9,584.63

As at March 31, 2022

Non convertible debentures {Secured) - - < B - -

Trade payables B ~

Other financial liabilities - i : < - - -

[This space is intentionally left blank}
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27 Capital management

For the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable to the unit holders of the Trust. The
primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize unit holder value,

The Trust manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
cavenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unitholders (subject to the provisions of InvIT regulations which
require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unitholders or issue new units, The Trust
manitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is not debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The
Trust includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and short
term investments,

Asab As at

Particulars March 31, 2022
March 33, 2023 (Refer Note 30)

Borrowings 7,416.24

Trade Payables 23.86

Cther financial liabilities 1.67

Less: cash and other bank balances (180.34) .

Net debt [A] 7,261.43 -

Unit capital 15,624.79 -

Other equity 272.87 -

Total equity capital [B] 15,897.66 -

Capital and net debt [C=A+B] 23,159.09 -

|Gearing ratio (%) [a/C] 0.31 -

Financial Covenants

In order to achieve this averall objective, the Trust’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial cavenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

Ne changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses far managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023.

28 Subsequent event
On May 25, 2023, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager apgroved a distribution of Rs.2.42 per unit for the period January 01, 2023 to March 3,
2023 to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

29 Contingent Consideration
As per the Securities Purchase Agreement, any amounts due to Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B)} Transmission
Limited ['NRSS") pursuant to any future order passed by any competent authority pursuant to caims or appeals filed by Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission
Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS MXXI(B) Transmissian Limited ('NRSS') until the Closing Date {including any claims or appeals filed in relation to the
CERC Order such as the appeal filed by DMTCL dated June 24, 2022) ("Future Receivables”) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust/Darbhanga - Motihari
Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited {'NRSS'} shall pursuant to the receipt of final, non-appealable orders of a
court of competent jurisdiction, be transferred to Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based on the management assessment of the possible outcome of these
matters and timing thereof, the same is not considered as cantingent consideration ag per Ind A5 103 Business Combination

30 Previous year figures
The Trust was registered as an irrevacable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 an November 1, 2021 and as an Infrastructure investment Trust under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on January 18, 2022. However there were no transactions during
the period November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022, Further, the financial statements of the Trust for the year ended March 31, 2022 included as comparative
financial information in the standalone financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject

to audit,
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Anzen India Energy
Yield Plus Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the InvIT") and its subsidiaries (the InvIT and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet
as at March 31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders’ Equity, the
consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, the consolidated Statement of
Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at
fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs'") of the InvIT and each of its
subsidiaries for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as
amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred as the
“InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with InvIT
Regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, its
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash movements and
its consolidated movement of the unit holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2023, its
consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, its consolidated total returns at fair
value and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT and each of its subsidiaries for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

SRBC&COLLP alimited Liabiity Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Flocr, Kolkata 700 016
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including
those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Applicability of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 'Service Concession Arrangement’ (as described

in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group through its subsidiaries acts
as a transmission licensee under the
Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid
licenses for 25 years. Generally, the
subsidiaries have entered into
Transmission Services Agreements
("TSA"™) with Long Term Transmission
Customers ("LTTC") through a tariff-
based bidding process to Build, Own,
Operate and Maintain ("BOOM™) the
transmission infrastructure for a period
of 35 years.

The Management of Investment Manager
("management"”) is of the view that the
grantor as defined under Appendix D of
Ind AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires
transmission licensee to obtain various
approvals under the regulatory
framework to conduct its operations
both during the period of the license as
well as at the end of the license period.
In the view of management, generally
the grantor’s involvement and approvals
are to protect public interest and are not

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the following:

Obtained and read the TSAs to
understand roles and responsibilities of
the grantor.

Evaluated the TSAs to understand
whether the grantor controls significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at
the end of the term of the arrangement
through ownership, beneficial ownership
or otherwise.

Discussed with management regarding
the extent of grantor’s involvement in the
transmission assets and grantor's
intention not to control the significant
residual interest through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise.

Assessed the positions taken by other
entities in India with similar
projects/TSAs as to the extent of
involvement of the grantor and the
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

intended to control, through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any
significant residual interest in the
transmission infrastructure at the end of
the term of the arrangement.
Accordingly, management is of the view
that Appendix D is not applicable to the
Group.

Considering the judgement involved in
determining the grantor’s involvement
and whether the grantor controls,
through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise, and any
significant residual interest in the
transmission infrastructure at the end of
the term of the arrangement, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

consequent evaluation of the applicability
of Appendix D for such entities and
confirmed our understanding.

e Read and assessed the disclosures
included in the consolidated financial
statements for compliance with the
relevant accounting standards
requirements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(as described in Note 3 and 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group owns and operates various
power transmission assets. The carrying
value of the power transmission assets
as at March 31, 2023, included under
property, plant and equipment INR
20,976.72 million.

In accordance with Ind AS 36, at each
reporting period end, management
assesses the existence of impairment
indicators of property, plant and
equipment. In case of existence of
impairment indicators, property, plant
and equipment and balances are
subjected to impairment test.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
is based on complex assumptions, that
by their nature imply the use of
management’s judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective
subsidiary’s transmission license, debt

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the.following:

Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over assessment of impairment of
property, plant and equipment and the
assumptions used by management.

Obtained and read the valuation report of the
Group's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert's competence, capability
and objectivity.

Involved our subject matter experts to
perform an independent review of
methodology, estimates and key
assumptions (weighted average cost of
capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period,
terminal growth rate) used in the valuation
by the Company's independent valuation
expert.

Tested on sample basis that the tariff
revenues considered in the respective
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination
of fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

valuation models are in agreement with
TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the
reasonableness of cost and revenue
attributes considered in forecast.

e Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy
and validity of the data used in the
calculations.

e FEvaluated the adequacy of disclosures
included in the consolidated financial
statements

Classification of unit holders’ funds as eq

uity (as described in Note 30 of the consolidated

financial statements)

The InvIT is required to distribute to
Unitholders not less than ninety percent
of its net distributable cash flows for
each financial year. Accordingly, a
portion of the unitholders’ funds
contains a contractual obligation of the
InvIT to pay to its Unitholders cash
distributions. The Unitholders' funds
could therefore have been classified as
compound financial instrument which
contains both equity and liability
components in accordance with Ind AS
32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation.
However, in accordance with SEBI
Circulars No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016
dated October 20, 2016 and No.
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November
29, 2016 ("SEBI Circulars") issued under
the InviT Regulations, the unitholders’
funds have been classified as equity in
order to comply with the mandatory
requirements of Section H of Annexure
A to the SEBI Circular dated October 20,
2016 dealing with the minimum
disclosures for key financial statements.

Considering the judgment required for
classification of unit holders' funds as
equity, this is considered as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others the
following:

e Obtained and read the requirements for
classification of financial liability and equity
under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation and evaluated the provisions of
SEBI Circulars for classification/presentation
of unit holders' funds in the financial
statements of an Infrastructure Investment
Trust.

e Evaluated the disclosures included in the
consolidated financial statements for
compliance with the relevant requirements of
InvIT regulations.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Acquisition of Transmission Special Purpose Vehicles (“SPVs") classified as asset
acquisitions (as described in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group acquires operational Our audit procedures included, among others,
transmission SPVs from the Sponsor or the following:
from third parties. The purchase

consideration primarily pertains to the e Read the relevant guidance under Ind AS on
fair value of the transmission assets. All determining if the acquired SPVs constitutes
such assets are operational assets with a business.

fixed tariff revenues under the

Transmission Services Agreements e Assessed the activities of the transmission
(TSAs) for 35 years. The only key SPVs.

activity for these SPVs is the
maintenance of the transmission assets | e Read and assessed the Group's accounting

which is outsourced to third parties. policy for recognition and classification on
There are very few employees in these the acquisition of transmission SPVs.
entities and no other significant
processes are performed for earning e Discussed with management the key
tariff revenues in any of the SPVs. assumption underlying the Group's
assessment and tested the underlying data
Based on evaluation of the above fact used for classification made by the Group.
pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on
definition of business under Ind AS, e Read and assessed the disclosures in the
including evaluation under the optional consolidated financial statements for
concentration test, and also keeping in compliance with the relevant accounting
view the relevant guidance on similar standards requirement.

fact pattern available under accounting
standards applicable in other
jurisdictions, management classified the
acquisition of transmission SPVs as
asset acquisition.

Considering the judgement involved in
determining if the acquisition of
transmission SPVs constitute business
or asset, it is considered as a key audit
matter.

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations

(as described in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group is required to disclose Our audit procedures included, among others the
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value following:

and Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value pursuant to SEBI circulars issued
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

under the InviT regulations which
requires fair valuation of the assets.
Such fair valuation has been carried out
by the independent valuer appointed by
the Group.

For the purpose of the above, fair value
is determined by forecasting and
discounting future cash flows.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
is based on complex assumptions, that
by their nature imply the use of
management’s judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective
subsidiary’s transmission license, debt
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination
of fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

e Read the requirements of InviT regulations
for disclosures relating to Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value.

e Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over assessment of fair value and
the assumptions used by management.

e Read the policy, evaluated the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over preparation statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations
and the assumption used by management.

e Obtained and read the valuation report by
the InviT's independent valuation expert, and
assessed the expert’'s competence, capability
and objectivity.

e |nvolved our subject matter experts to
perform an independent review of
methodology, estimates and key
assumptions (weighted average cost of
capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period,
terminal growth rate) used in the valuation
by the Company’s independent valuation
expert.

e Tested on sample basis that the tariff
revenues considered in the respective
valuation models are in agreement with
TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the
reasonableness of cost and revenue
attributes considered in forecast.

e Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy
and validity of the data used in the
calculations.

e Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
included in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other Information

The management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager”) is
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Management of the Investment Manager (‘the Management’) is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash movements and the consolidated movement
of the unit holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2023, the consolidated net assets at
fair value as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated total returns at fair value of the InvIT and
the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT and each of its subsidiaries in accordance with the
requirements of the InvIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with InvIT
Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safequarding of the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the management, as aforesaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Investment
Manager and the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

>  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors,
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the InvIT and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
The financial statements of the InvIT for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March
31, 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated

financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but
have not been subject to audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;
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(b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss arein
agreement with the books of account;

() In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)Ca) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not
inconsistent with InvIT Regulations.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

/\,/\/

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 23408869BGXKKU8210
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 25, 2023




Anten India Encrgy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
All smaunts In Rupees million unless otherwise stated

For the perlod from
Year ended November 01, 2021
Partioars MOt mareh 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
(Refer Note 35)
INCOME
Revenue from contract with customers (18) 936.69
Inzome from investment in mutual fund 5137
Interest incame on investment in fied depasits 8.62 .
Other income 2.52 -
Tatal income 995.20 -
EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance axponso 30.60 -
Employae benefit axpensas (17) 6.79
Depreciation exgense 3) 77013
Fimance costs (18) 439.20
Investment management fees (refer Nate 19} 24.18 -
Project management fees [refer Note 18) 10,53
Insurance expenses 2087
Legal and prafessiona! feas 35.59 -
Annual listing fos 2.62 -
Rating fee 266
Valuation expenses 030 -
Trustee fee 0.64 .
Payment t¢ auditars
- Statutery audit fees 373
- Other services (including certifications) 0.02 -
Other expenses {19) 7.82 -
Total expenses 1,356.28 -
Loss before tax {357.08) -
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (26} (37.84) -
(2) Deferred tax (26) - -
Lass for the year/period {A] (319.24) -
Cther Comprehiansive Income
Items that will not ba reclassified ta stelis or lass in subsequent penicds {0.01) -
ttoms that will be reclazsifled 1o pralit or loss in subsequent penods - -
Tatal other comprehensive Income for the year/period, nat of tax [8] |_ {0.01) 4‘
—
Taial comprehensive income for the yearfperiod, net of tax (A+8) { i (319,75)| -
|
Loss fer the year/period
Attributable to
Untt holders (319.24)
Non- Controlling interast -
Totai comprehensive income for the year/period:
Atributable to :
Unit holders (319.25) .
MHeon- Controlling interest -
Earnings per unit {Rs. per unit) (28)
‘iic and diluted [5.23) -
Summary of slgnificant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC& O LLp Farand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
Firm Registration No: 324982€/€300003 [As Investment Manager ta Anzen India Energy Yield PlusTrust)

o T b

perAmit Singh R Vaibhav I:lo:'l;l
Partner Cl0 & Whale-time Directar Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number : 408869 DIN Na. : 09609160

Place : Pune

Date : May 25,2023 g\)cunut\

Company Secretary
Membership Number : Ad4507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023
Allamounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

As at At
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Refer Note 35)
ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment (3) 20,976.72
(i) Other financial assets (4) 7.37
{B) Income tax assets (nat} . 24.36
Total non-current assets 21,008.45
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investments (5) 1,306.42
(ii) Trade receivables (7) 12.03
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents (8A} 65.35
(iv) Bank balances other than disclosed in note 8A above (88) 176.24
(v) Other financial assets (4) 656.62
[b) Other current assets (8) ) B 3113
Total current assets B ] 2,247.79 =
Total assets 23,256.24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Unit capital {9} 15,624.79
{b) Other equity (10) (515.19)
Total equity 15,109.60
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings {11) 7,416.24
(b) Provisions (12) 1.89
Tatal non-current liabilities 7,418.13
(2) Current liabilities
(2) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables (13)
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4,72
(b) total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises —
and small enterprises :
{ii) Other financial liabilities {14) 632.99
(b) Other current liabilities (15) 31.75
(c) Provisions (12) 0.63
Total current liabilities 728.51
Total equity and liabilities 23,256.24
Summary of significant accounting poalicies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors af
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
Firm Registration No: 324982€/E300003 [As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
n
(A%
per Amit Singh @—/".J u /
Partner Ranjita Deo Vaibhav DBshi
Membership Number : 408869 CIO & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer
Place : Pune DIN No. : 09609160

Date: May 25,2023

o
Jalpa Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023




Anzen India Erergy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year endad March 31,2023
" All amounts in Rupees million uniess otherwise stated

For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax {357.08)
Adjustmants to reconcile foss before tax to net-cash-Hows:
Depreciation expenses 770.13
Interastincome on investmsatin fixed deposits (8.62)
income from investmentin mutyal fund {51.37)
Fimance ¢oses 439.20
Operating profit befora working capital changes 792.26
Waorking tapitat adjuctrnent
fincréase) / Decrease in other assats {16.17)
{increase} / Decrease in other financs! assers (313.68)
incressel f Dacrease in trade receivaliles 1,407.59
increase / {Decrease} in trade payables 32.18
Intresse / {Decrease)in provisions {0.16)
Incresse  {Decrease} in other abilities 29.35
Increase 7 (Decrezse)in arher finangizl liabilites {994.78)
Cash flow generated from aperations 942.60
Direct taxes paid {08t of refunds) {60.89)
Net cash flow from operating activities JA] 83171
Cash flow from Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant sad equipmenti (13,446.85)
Acquisition of other assers { net of other lizhilities)s {1,811.45}
Investment in fixed déposits {9,426.33)
Froceads from maturity of fixed deposin 10,424.36
fnuestment s vt Rends (8,693.97)
Procerds from sale.of investment in mutust funds 8,006.51
nterest incaime on investment i fixed deposits 8.46
Net cash flow used fn investing ectivities (B} {14,939.27)
Cash flow from financing activitles
Proceeds from issue of Uniz capigal™ 7,500.00
Payment of unit issie expenses (175.21)
Praceeds from nen convertible debenturss {secured} 7,500.00
Repayment of non convertible debentures fsetured) {12,294.00)
Acquisition of bosrowings# 12,160.67
payment of distributions to unit holders {39582}
Payment of interest on NCD {296.33)
Payment of upfront fees for RCD 91.63)
Neteash fow from finandng activities (€] 14,107.58
Netincrease / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents [A+8+0] 50.02
Cash ang cash equivalents at the begining of the year {refer Note 84 -
Cash and ¢ash eguivalents on acquisition 15.33
Cash and cash equivalents 2t the end of the year frefer Note 8a} 65.35

*Trust has purchased for 16.30 million and 9.83 million equity shares issuad by Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL’) and NRSS
XXXI(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') in exchange of issue if its 83.00 million units. The same has not been reflected in cash flow being a non- cash

transaction.

# Pertains to prajects acquired during the year viz. DMTCL and NRSS- Refer Note 32

H As at
Components of cash and cash equivalents: March 31, 2023
Balances with banks :
- On current accounts 65.35
-~ Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months -
Total cash and cash equivalents {refer note B4} 65.35




AnzenIndia Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities (including current maturities)

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023

Opening total borrowlngs (including interest accrued but not due) -

Cash flow

- Interest paid (296.33)

- Proceeds/(repayments) 7,500.00

Interest accrued 258.00

Others (ancillary borrowing cost) (83.76)

Closing tatal borrowings lincluding interest accrued but nat due) 7,417.91
Summary of significant accounting policies
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
Firm Registug;on No: 324982E/€300003 (As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Y!reld Plus Trus
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perAmit Singh Ranjita Deo Vaibhav Doshi

Partner ClO & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number : 408869 DIN No. : 09609160
Place : Pune
Date: May 25, 2023 S'POJ“@L
lJalpa Parekh
Company Secretary

Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit holders’ Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
Allamounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

A. Unit capital
Particulars Wo: of unitstn Amount
million
As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35)
Units issued during the year (refer note 8) - -
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Units issued during the year [refer note 9(a)] 158.00 15,800.00
Less: Issue expenses [refer note 9(b)] (175.21)
As at March 31, 2023 158.00 15,624.79
B. Other equity
Reserves and Cther .
) St comprehensive
Particulars income Total
; . Actuarial gain/(loss)
Retded Barnings on defined liabilities
As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35) - - -
Profit for the period - - -
Other comprehensive income for the period - - -
As at March 31, 2022 - - -
Loss for the year (319.26) . (319.26)
Other comprehensive income for tha year - (0.01) (0.01)
Less: Distribution during the year (195.92) - {195.92)
As at March 31, 2023 (515.18) (0.01) {515.19)

Note:
The distribution during the year daes not include the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2022-23 which will be paid after
March 31, 2023.

The distributions made by Anzen to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Anzen under the InvIT
Regulations and hence part of the same includes repayment of capital as well.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 324982€/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)

per Amit Singh
Partner
Membership Number : 408869

Place : Pune
Date : May 25, 2023

Ranjita Deo
CIO & Whole-time Directar
DIN No. : 09609160

G

lalpa Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023

Res
Vaibhav Doshi
Chief Financial Officer




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Notes to consolidated finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Clrculars

(SEBI Gircular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated Navemnber 28, 2016 issued under the InviT Regulations)

A.  Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2023 {refer note 2 belaw)

(Rs. In million)

Particulars Book Value Fair Value
A. Assets 23,256.24 24,840.40
8. Liabilities {at book value) B,146.64 8,146.64
C. Net Asset Value (A-B) 15,109.50 16,693.76
0. Number af units 158.00 158.00
E. NAV {C/D) 9563 105.65
Notes:

1. Projact wise break up of Fair value of Assets as at March 31, 2023 (Rs. in miliion)
Particulars Fair Value
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {"DMTCL"] 13,849.80
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited ("NRs5") 10.337.42
Sub total 24,187.22
InvIT Assets 653.18
Total Assets 24,840.40

N

Fair values of total assets {including project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS of fair value of total assets) as at March 31, 2023 as disclosed above
are based solely on the fair valuation report dated May 23, 2023 of the independent valver appointed by the Investment manager under the InvIT
Regulations,

B.  Statement of Total Return at fair Value (refer note 1 below)

(Rs. In million)

Partlculars Year ended
March 31, 2023

Total Comprehensive Income {as per the Statement of Profit and Loss) (319.25)
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value (e.g., in investment property, property, plant &
equipment (if cost model is followed)) not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income (refer 1,584.16
note 1 below)
Total Return 1,264 91
Notes:

[

- Fair value of assets as at March 31, 2023 and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are based on fair
valuation repart issued by the independent valuer appointed under the InvIT regulations.

N

. Sensitivity analysis with respect to significant unobservable Inputs used in the fair value measurement has been disclased in Note 23,

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edel Real Assets gers Limited
Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003 (As Investment Manager ta Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
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Partner ClO & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number : 408869 DIN No. : 09609160
Place : Pune ‘\
Date : May 25, 2023 4 eAC
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—————
Jalpa Parekh

Company Secretary
Membership Number : A44507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued

under the InviT Regulations)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEB! CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016

A) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

{Rs. in Miltion)

Description

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest / accrued interest / additional interest

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen Trust|
and/ or redempticn of debentures issued by SPVs to the Anzen Trust

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as
permitted, subject to applicable law

Inflow from Investments / Assets

Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts reinvested
or.planned to be reinvested

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such]
proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently

Inflow from Liabilities

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of units,
etc.

Other Inflows

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deemed necessary by the
Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen
Trist

712.87

626.00

15,000.00

35.08

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level {A)

16,373.95

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes
Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to
the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc.

Less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and [ or payment of other statutory dues

Quiflow for Liabilities
Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of
any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc.

Outfiow for Assets

Less: Amount invested in any of the SFVs

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the Investment
Manager in compliance with the InvIT Regulations

Less: Investments including acquisition of other SPVs

Other Outflows

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may be
due in future ]
Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan agreements]
in relation to the Anzen Trust
Less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the Investment
Manager
Add / Less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting
of the same item for the above calculations

(438.7€)

{15.05)

{155.00)

(15,071.00)

{(102.47}

Total cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust level (B}

{15,782.28)

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = (A+B}

591.68

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year.




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

{SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued

under the InviT Regulations)

B} Statement of Net Distributabie Cash Flows (NDCFs) of underlying SPVs

i} Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL'}

Description

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) {A)

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L

4dd: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from / debentures issued to the
Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account

Adjustment of Non-cash items

Add: Depreciation, impairment {in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and amortisation as
per profit and loss account. )

Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items),
including but not limited to

* Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on
measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;

* Interest cost as per effective interest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid});

» Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. ’

Adjustrnents for Assets on Balance Sheet

Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital

Add / less: Loss / gain on saie of assets / investments

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceads
reinvestend or planned to be reinvested.

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments not distributed pursuant to an
earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently.

Less: Capital expenditure, if any.

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any.
Adiusiments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of
any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt.

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc.

Add: Proceeds lrom additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of equity
shares / preference shares, etc,

Less: Payment of any other liabilities {not covered under working capital}

Other Adjustments

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses / fiabilities which
may be due in future.
Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan
agraements in relation to the SPVs.
Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting
of the same item for the abave calculations.
Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the Invesiment
Manager in line with the InvIT Regulations.
Total Adjustments {B)

(248.70)

391.94

246.96

{385.33)

695.28

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = {#+8&}

446.58

During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen.
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DFf127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued

under the InvIT Reguiations)

NRSS XXX1{B} Transmission Limited {'NRSS'}
Dascription Year ended

March 31, 2023
Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) (A} (167.36)
Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L d
Add: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from / debentures issued to the 287.47
Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account
Adiustment of Non-cash items . -
Add: Depreciation, impairment {in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and amortisation as 140.08
per profit and loss account.
Add / Jess: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), -
including but not limited to
 Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on {3.36)
measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value; v
* Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 58.50
« Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. 1.06
Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet -
Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital 199.07
Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of assets / investments {6.35)
Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds -
reinvested or planned to be reinvested.
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments not distributed pursuant to an -
earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently.
Less: Capital expenditure, if any. B
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any. =
Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet
Less: Repayment of third-party debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of -
any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt. .
Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc. -
Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of equity -
shares / preference shares, etc.
Less: Payment of any other liabilities {not covered under working capital) -
Other Adjustments -
Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses / liabilities which -
may be due in future. . ]
Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan {196:63)
agreements in relation to the SPVs.
Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting| -
of the same item for the above calculations.
Adkd: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the Investment -
Manager in line with the InvIT Regulations.
Tatal Adjustments (B) 479.84
Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = {A+8) 312.48

During the period, amount being at least 50% has already been distributed to Anzen,
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1

2.

-

Group information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the Trust” or "Anzen") and its subsidiaries ( collectively, the Group). Anzen is an
Irrevocable trust settled by Sekura Energy Private Limited{the “Sponsor*} on November 01, 2021 pursuant to the Trust Deed under the provisions of the indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registerad
with Securities Exchange Board of India ("SEBI™) under the SEBI (Infrastructure investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 as an Infrastructuse Investment Trust on January 18, 2022 having
registration number IN/InviT/21-22/0020, The Trustee of Anzen is Axis Trustee Services Limited {the “Trustee®). The & 14 ger for Anzen is Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limitad

{the "1 Manager” or the “Manag "}, The objectives of Anzen are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of the InviT

Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Anzen is to own and invest in power transmission assets and renewable energy assets in India with the objective of producing stable
and sustainable distributions to unitholiders.

As at March 31, 2023, Anzen has following project entities {“Special Purpose Vehicles” or “SPVs™) which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and
Maintain {'BOOM') basis: - ’

{a) Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited [“DMTCL"}

{b} NRSS XXX! (B} Transmission Limited {"NRSS")

These SPVs have executed Transmission Services Agreements (“TSAs") with Long term transmission customers under which the SPVs have to maintain the transmission infrastructure for 35
years post commissioning. )

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Plot 294/3, Edelweiss House, off CST Road, Kalin, Santacruz - East. Mumbai 400098, Maharashtra. India.

The finandal were auth d for issue in dance with resolution of Beard of Directors of the Investment Manager on May 25, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGES ’

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The idated financial staty comprise cf the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Cor hensive Income, the Consolidated of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the year then ended and the Consolidated Statement
of Net Assets at fair value as at March 32, 2023 and the Consclidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {"NDCFs'} of the Trust, the
underlying holding company (“HoldCo"} and each of its subsidiaries for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a} of the Ct (Indian A ing dards) Rules, 2015(as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"ind AS") read with SEB! {Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended and tha circulars issued thereunder (*InviT Regulations”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

* Derivative financial instruments .

* Certain financial assets measured at fair value (e.g, Liquid mutual funds)

The¢ i d financial stat are presented in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated. .

As per regulation 26 of INVIT lations 2014, the Group is eligible for a total debt (net of cash and cash equivalents} of 70% to AUM, As at March 31, 2023, the total debt {net of cash and cash
equivalents) to AUM is within the prescribed limits. .

Basis of Consolidation

The i d financial comprise the financial stataments of the Trust and its subsidiaries as at March 31,2023, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variabie returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if
the Group has .

« Power over the investee (i.e. existing nghts that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, 2nd
* The atility to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
lly, there is a pi ion that a majority of voting rights result in control, To support this presumptian and when the Greup has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Greup considers all refevant facts and ciccumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, includiny

* The contractual arrangerment with the other vate holdess of the investee
* Rights arrsing from ciher contractual arrangements
¢ The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

-» The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other veting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether ar not it controls an i if facts and cil indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three el of cantrol, C lid ofa
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control aver the subsid iary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabili incorne and of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are inciuded in the lidazed financial from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circomstances. If a meamber of the group uses accounting
policies other than those adepted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and cvents in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments aie inade tw thal iuup member’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensuse conformity with the group’s accounting policies,

The financial statements of ali entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up ta same reporting date as that of the parant, i.e., period ended on March 31,

Consalidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are
based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the lidated financial nts at the acquisition date,

{h) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

(<) Eliminate in full intragroup assats and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flaws relating to transactions between entities of the group {profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are efiminated in full).

* Intragroug losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financia! statements. ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the

efimination of profits and losses resulting fram intragreup transactions.

Profit or lass and each of other comprehensive income {0Cl) are attributed to the unit holders of the Trust and to the non controlling interests (if any), even if this results in the nen-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting palicies inta fine with the Group's
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, incorne, expenses and cash Flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are efiminated in full on
censolidation. .

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

* Nerecognises the assets (i goodwill) and liabilitics of the subsidiary

= Daerecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

* Derecognises the curnulative transiation differences recorded in equity

« Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

« Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

= Recognises any surplus ar deficit in profit or loss

* Reclassifies the parent's share of p previousty gnised in OCI to profit or foss or retained earnings. as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. '
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2.2 summary of significant accounting policies

a}

b]

C]

d)

€)

The following is the summary of significant accounting policies apgplied by the Group in preparing its Consolidated financial statements:

Acquisition of Transmission SPVs classified as asset acquisitions
The Group acquires operational transmission and Solar Project SPVs from the Sponsor or from third party. The purchase consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission
assets. All such assets are operational assets with fixed tariffr underthe T ission Services Ag ts (TSAs) for 35 years . The only key activity for these SPVs is the maintenance

-of the transmissicn assets which is outsourced to third parties and partially done in'house, There are few employees in these entities and nc other significant processes are performed for

earning tariff revenues.

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and also kaeping in view the refevant guidance on similar fact pattern available
under accounting d ficable in other jurisdictions, the has classified the isition of tr ission SPVs as asset acquisition.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currant/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
 Expected to be realised or intended to be sald or consumed in narmal aperating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting year, or

* Cask ar cash equivalent unless restricted lrom being exchanged or used 1o settle a hability far at least twelve months aiter the reporting year
Ali other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: -

* Itis expected ta be settled in normal operating cycle

= Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or

 There is no uncanditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at feast twalve months after the reporting year

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification,
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. .

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as nan-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reafisation in cash
and cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign cusrencies
The Group's C lidated fi ial are din INR, which is its functianal currency. The Group does not have any foreign operation,

Transactions and balances
Transactlons in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition
A Y assets and liabilities di i in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Oifferences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or icss

Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical costina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the orice that would te received to sell an asset or paid to transier 2 liability in an arderly transaction between morket particigants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the pi ption that the tr: ion to sell the asset or transfer the fiability takes place either: :

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. . ’

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s abiiity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highet and best use. ’

The Group uses valuztion technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available te measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant cbservable
inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs. :

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclesed in the financial statements are categarised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based cn the iowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant t the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable..

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whele] at the end of each reporting periad,

In estimating the fair value of transmission assets/projects, the Group engages independent qualified external valuers to perferm the valuation. The management works closely with

the external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and Inputs to the model, The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change in fair
value with relevant external sources to determine whether the change Is reascnable. The management reports the valuation report and findings to the Beard of the Investment Manager
annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects,

At gach reporting date, the ah the 1t of assets and liabilities which are ired to be or d as per the Group’s accounting policies, For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the fatest valuati by ing the inf jon in the valuati ion to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management also compares-the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources te determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy, as explained above, ’

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

» Disclosures of Statement of Net Assets at fair vaiue and Statement of Tatal Returns at fir value

* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note 23}

« investment in queted mutual fund (note 5)

+ Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) {note 24}

Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services befere
transferring them to the customer,
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Power transmission services .

from « with ] prises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long Term Transmission Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to the respective
Te ission Services A {TSAs} executed by the Group with LTTCs for years of 35 years. The Group is required to ensure that the transmission assets meet the minimum availability
criteria under the respectlve TS4s. The Group's performance obligation vide the TSAs is to provide power transmission services, The performance obligation is satisfied cver time as the
customers raceive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs. Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised over time
based on the transmission asset availabiiities and the tariff charges approved under the respective CERC tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting
year. The payment is generally due within 60 days.

Operation and maintenance service
Revenue from operation and maintenance contracts are recognised pro-rata over the year of the contract as and when services are renderad.

Contract balances

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is ditional (i.e. anly the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due}. Amounts
which have been billed to the customers are disclosed 2s trade receivables and amounts which are to be billed to the customers (and not conditional on the group's future performance} are
disclosed under “Other financial assets”. Refer accounting policies for financial assets in Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Interest income
interest incomne is accrued an a time basis, by reference to the principai cutstanding and at the effective interest rate i

Dividend
tncome from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which generally it is approved by the shareholders, whereby the Group's right to receive is established,

f] Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and Fiabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax autherities. The tax rates and tax laws Used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in cther comprehens(ve income or in equity), Current
tax items are ised in lation to the underlying t ion either in OC! or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interp ion and blishes p: ion:
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lizbifity method on temporary differences between the tax base.‘ of assets 5nd liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax liabifities are recognised for all taxabie temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred-tax liability anses from the initial reccgnition of gacdwill or an asset or liakslity in 3 transaction that is aot a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting prefit nor taxable profit or loss;

 Intrespect of taxable temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, asscciates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temparary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the porary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Ceferred tax assets are reccgnised for ali deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Oeferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can oe utilised, except:

« When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the iitial recognition of an asset or hakility in a transaction that is not a business combination ang, at
the time of the transactlon, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

« In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investrents in subsidiaries, associates and irterests in joint ventures, deferrad tax assets are recognised enly to the extent
thatit is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the fareseeable future and taxabie profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to altow ali or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. .

Deferred tax assets and Inabrhbes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax faws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

-
Deferred tax relating ta items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are r in correlation ta the underlying

transaction either in OC| or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 1 set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable group and the same taxation authority,
Salesfvalue added taxas paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except:

« When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recaverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax gaid is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense itemn, as applicable

= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable fram, or payable to, the tax autharity is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at ¢ost, net of accumuiated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accurmulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cast includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recagnition criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be raplaced at intervals, the Group depreciates thern separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfled, All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of plant and equipment.

g

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction periad is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the
di can be attrib o ca tion activity or is incidental there te, Income earned during the construction period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure,

-t e value, Freehald fand is not depreciated. The Group is providing depreciation at the following usefut life:
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E

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated usefu! lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed In Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which is appli to the idiary ies, The nent believes that these estimated useful jives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the year over which the assats are likely to be used. -

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on deracognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecogaised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of proparty, plant and equi 1t are revi i at each fi ial year end and adj i prospectively, if appropriate.

: Borrowing costs

Borrawing casts directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs-are expensed in the year in which they octur. Borrawing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing casts.

tmpairment of non current financiat assets .

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when annual impainment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of dispasal and its valye in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account; If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used, These calulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair

value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculations on detailed budget and forecast caiculations. These budgets are prepared for the entire project life,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment toss is reversed only if there has been a change In the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been d ined, net of depreciation, had no impai loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss unless the asset is ¢arried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

In determining fair value measurement, the impact of potential climate-related matters, including legislation, which may affect the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements has been considered, These risks in respect of climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where thay materially impact the measure of recoverable amount,
These assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts,

At present, the impact cf climate-related matters is not material Io the Graug's financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabitities and contingent assets .

Pravisions sre recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or canstructive) as a result of a past event, it is probakie that an outflow of resaurces embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the cbFgation and a reliable esti can ke made of the amount cf the obligation,

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an nsurance centract, the reimbussement is recognised as 3 separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement cf profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisicns are discounted using 3 current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiity. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provisicn due to the passage of time is recognised as 2 finance cost,

Contingent liability is disclosed for, (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events nat wholly within the control of the Group, or {ii) Present obligations arising from past
events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligatian or a relizble estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements,

and other empioyes benefi .
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The Group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service, If the contribution payakile to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution aleady paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as 2 hability after deducting the contributicn already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for le, a reduction in future pay ora cash refundg.

The cost of praviding benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts.

included in net interest on the net defined benefit iability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding dehit or cradit to retained 2arnings through OCl in the year in

which they occur. Rer s are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years, .
N

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined beneft kiability or asset, The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss:

* Service costs comprising current sesvice costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nen-routine settiements; and

= Net interest expense of income .

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term emplovee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as tha

additional amaunt that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cast of short-term employee benefit

as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The Group treats accurmulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve manths, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term mmpensaléd absences

are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date, Actuarial gains/losses are i diately taken to the of profit and loss
ana wee pat deferced,

The group operates defined benefit gratuity plan in india.

The Cade on Social Security, 2020 {Code’) relating to employee benefits during employ and post-employ benefits received Presidential assent on 28 September 2020. The Code has

been published in the Gazette of India. While section 142 of the Code pertaining 1o mandatarily registering Aadhar by beneficiaries has come into force on 03 May 2021, however, the date on
which the entire Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued, The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.
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§ Financial instruments .
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,
Financial assets . .
" Initial recognition and measurement .
Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financiai assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits tc purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of sub: measy t, Fi ial assets are
i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through ather comprehensive income {FVTOCI}

iii, Debt instrumants, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value thraugh profit or loss {FVTPL}
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

d in four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if bath the following conditions are met:

a} The assetis held within a business modal whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount autstandiog.

After initial measurement, such financiat assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any di or ium an isition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, .

Financial assets at fair value through GCHFVTOC!) {debt instruments)

A “financial asset’ is classified as the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selting the financial assats, and

bj The asset’s cantractuai cash Rows represent SPP,

Debt instruments incfuded within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well 2s at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income {OCi). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the staternent of profit or loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is seclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss, Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOQ debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method,

Financlal assets designated at fair value through OCt {equity instruments}

Upan initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investmants as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and ings ideration r ised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as 3t FVTPL, .

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never secycled to profit or loss, Dividends are recognised as other inceme in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the benefits from such praceeds as 2 recevery of part of the cost of the financal asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OC, Equity instruments designated at

fair value through OCI are not sukbject to impairment assessment,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss i
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with not changes in fair value recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss.

Berecognition .

4 financial asset {or, where agplicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of 3 greup of similar financial asseis} is primarily derecognised (i e. remeved from the Group's Consalidated balance
sheet} when: :

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, ar 3

= The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flaws in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewasds of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset, '

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and 10 what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of awnership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Groug continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement, In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

impairment of financial assets

Majarity of the financial assets of the Graup pertain to Trade and other receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Group does not foresee any credit risk on its trade and other
receivables which may cause an impairment. As per the TSA, the receivables are covered by clause of payment security mechanism which ensures receipt of all trade receivables, Also, the
Group does not have any past history of impairment of Trade and other receivables. ! ! '

Financiai liabilities

tnitial recognition and measurement .

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial r ition, as financial liabilities at fair vakie through profit ar loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. -

Al fis ial liabilities are gnised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and-barrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction casts.

The Group’s financiai liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measusrement .

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial lfabilities are ciassified in two categorias:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or fass

« Financial liabilities at amortised cast {loans and berrawings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through prafit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through grofit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 108, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit ar loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost {Loans and borrowings)
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amonrtisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss, :

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 11.
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Derecognition

A financial liabllity is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing fiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original iability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or inss,

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial aeedgaition, Afcer initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial fiabilities. For finaneinl assets which are debt instruments, 3 rechssification is made only if there is 2 change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
busi modef are d to ba infreq The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of extarnal or internal changes which are significant to the
Group's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business mode! occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassifization prospectively from the ceclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year
following the change in business model. The Group does not rastate any prewisusly recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

‘Oﬁﬂmﬂ dlassification  } Y %w Argmunting treatment
: - p e o - - P

Amortised cost TPL Fa:r vglu: is méasur_ed at erassﬁlcauon date. Difference between previous amortized cost and fair

watun is = Tnprotic ar fags,
- - - progin "~ F i EIRI 1 5

FVTPL Arnortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becames its new gross carrying amount, EIR is calculated based on
Ane ey grosk carrymg amount. .

Amortised cost rroc Fair value is measured at redlassification date. Difference between pravious amortised cost and fair

ualiss is recopnised in e, No chanpe in ERdue 1o 3
Fair value at redassification date becomes its new smoriises cost carrying amount, However,
FVTOC! i cost i gain or loss in OCl is adjusted against fair value. Cansequently, the asset is measured as
tichad sy beon mesnaed 2t amortised rost,

Faievalue at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustmentis
requirnd,

FVTPL FVTOC!

vToc TRt

ASUTS Contae e measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or lass previously recognized in OCl is

rediansifind from #guity 1o profit or loss the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the lizbilities simuitaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and an hand and short-term depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. .
For the purpase of the Consoliidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, ret of outstanding bank overdrafts as they
are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management,

Cash distribution 10 unit holders
The Group recognises a liabitity ta make cash distributicns ta unit halders when the distribution is authorised and a iegal obligation has been created. As per the inviT Regulations, a distribution
is authorised when it is appraved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding ameunt is recognised directly in equity,

Earnings per unit .

Basic eamings per unit s caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributatle to unit hoiders of the Trust {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes if any] by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of units cutstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus efement in a
rights issue, split, and reverse split {consolidation of units) that have changed the number of units out ding, without a corr ding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to unit hoiders of the Trust and the weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period ase adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potentialunits,

Recent aceounting proncuncements

The Ministry of Corporate Aftairs ["MCA®) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which wauld have been applicable from April 01, 2022
having material impact on these financial statements, There is no impact of standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

[This space is intentionaily left blank]
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3)

Property, plant and equipment

ed financial st for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Plant and

Freehold Jand .
equipment

Furniture and
fixtures

Office
equipment

Computers

Totail

Gross Blozk

As at Navember 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35)
Additions during the period

Disposals during the period

As at March 31, 2022

Addition on account of acquisition {refer note 32}
Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35)
Depreciation for the period

Disposals during the period

As at March 31, 2022

Depreciation for the year

Disposals during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Net Block
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2023

78.3% 21,664.80

21,746.76
0.08

78.33 21,664.80

21,746.85

- 769.33

- 769.33

78.39 20,895.47

194

20,976.72

{This space is intentionaily left blank]
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(3) = Other financial assets
Non - Current

As at
Particulars Asat March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 (Refar Note 35)

{Unsecured, considered goad)

Security deposits 7.37 »
Total 7.37 -
Current

{Unsecured, considered good)

Unbilled revenue* £55.45 -
Intarest accrued on fixed deposit 0.16 -
Fixed deposit having remaining maturity of less than twelve months 036 -
Othe recejvables 0.65 -
Total 656.62 ~

*Unbilled revenue is the transmission charges for the last quarter of pericd and incentive billed to transmission utilities in the next month

subseguent to year end,

{5) lavestments

Current
Asat
Particulars Asat March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 ’ "
{Refer Note 35) |
Investments in mutusi funds (valued at fair value through Profit or Loss)
1CICI Prudential Liquid fund-Direct Plan Growth{ 1,904,747.211 units) 634.64 -
ABSL Liguid fund-Growth-Direct Plan{ 900,428.322 units) 326.93 -
Az Liquid Fund-Direct Growth{ 120,494,916 units) 301.34 B
#CH Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Flan -Growth - overnight{ 25,088.682 units) 3032 B
ABSL Overnight Fund-Growth-Direct Plan{ 10,879:295 units} ’ 13.19 -
Total 1,306.42 -
Aggregate value of quoted investments 1,306.42 -
Aggregate value of unquoted investments - -
(6) Other assets
Larten
Asat
Particulars Asat March 31, 2022
March 32,2023 . ”
Refer Note 35}
{Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses 30,98 .
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 0.15 «
Total 3113 -
{7} Trade receivables
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
March 31,2023 Rofer Note
{Unsecured, considered good) .
i Trade raceivables 12.03 -
Total 12.03 -

No trade cr other receivable are due from directors or other officars of the Group either severaily or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade of other receivable are due from firms or private

companies respectively In which any director is a partner, a director or a memeber.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 days.

See Nate 24(a) on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Group manages and measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired.

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023:

Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2023

Moré than 3 Total

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2years! 2-3 years
| years

d Trade Receivables - gone

Unctaptitsd Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
Undisgured Trade receivable — credit impaired

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
Oisgmated Trade receivables — credit wspairnd

1203 - - - - 12.03

Toptigd
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{84) Cash and cash equivalents

Teul Asat M d:‘ ;:czozz
Particulars ar ,
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 35)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand - -
 3alances with banks in current accounts 65.35 -
Total 65.35 -
Balances with bank s current account does not earn interest.
{88) Balances with bank on zurrant atcsunt does not oarn intereit, Shorttarm drgosits ars mades for
Particul Asat ™ c: ;:tzozz
articulars ar ,
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 35)
Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 21.24 -
Balances with bank held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other { 155.00 ~
commitmentsk
Total 176.24 -

#Fixed deposits with banks of Rs. 155.00 miliion as at March 31, 2023 { March 31, 2022: Nil} and interest accrued thereon of Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited {debenture
trustee).

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the mmediate cash requirements of the trust, and earn interest at the respective short-term
deposit rates.

{This space is intentionally left bank]
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{9) unit capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of units i
No. of units in million Amount ° " L_"“ sin Amount
million

Issued, subscrived and fully paid up:
Units of Rs. 100 each 158.00 15,800.00 - -
Less: Issue axpanses {175.21) -

15,624.79 .

Note:

(a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial issue of 75,000,000 units, for cash at a price of Rs 100.00 per unit, aggregating to Rs, 7500 Million to the eligible unitholders
{as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) {the "lssue”) on private placemnent basis, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India {infrastructure Investment
Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder. The issue opened cn Novernber 10, 2022 and closed on November 11,2022, Additionally, pursuant
to the share purchase agreement with Edelweiss infrastructure Yield Plus Trust {"EIYP"), EIYP was allotted 83,000,680 units of Anzen,

The InvIT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (investment Manager of Anzen), considerad and appraved allotment of 1,58,000,00C units to the eligible unitholders
of Anzen an Ncvember 11, 2022.

(b) Issue expenses of Rs.175,21 Million incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation

i) Terms/Rights attached to the equity cpital

The Trust has only one class of Units having 2 par value of Rs. 100 per Unit. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is entitled to one
vote per unit. The Unithalders have the right to receive at feast 30% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every year in accordance with the InvITv
Regulations. The Investment Managar approves dividend distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust declares and
pays dividends in Indlan rupees.

A Unithalder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trust and is not entitled tc any share in the transfer of the projects {or any part therecf] or any interest in
the projects {or any part thereof) of the Trust. A Upithelder's right is limited to the right to require due ad ministration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed
and the Investment Management Agreement,

(i} Details of Unitholders halding more than 5% units in the Trust

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars . of units i
No. of units in million % holding No . lfmts " % holding
mitlion
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 93.80 53.37%: - -
Sekura Energy Private Limited 2330 15.06%; - -
“arsen & Toubro Limited 15,20 S.62% - ~
132.30 84.05% - ~

{ii} Reconciliation of units cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

1 As at March 31, 2023 A3 st Mzech 33, 2022
Particulars No. of units in million Amount N of ‘_m'ts n Amount

i million
At the beginning of the year - - - .
Add : Issued during the year 158.00 15,800.00 - -
Less: Issue expenses {refer note (b} 2bove} - {175.21} - -
QOutstanding at the end of the year 158.00 15,624.79 - -

The Teust issued its units amounting o Rs.8,300 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively and Rs. 7,500 miltion for Cash
consideration.

{iv) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incarporation till the balance
sheet data.

. {10} Other aguity

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss for the year (319.26) >
Other comprehensive income (0.01) -
tess: Distribution to Unit Holders {195.92} -
Closing balance {515.19) -
Total {515.13} -

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholders, if any,
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{11) Borrowings
Non - current:

Asat
Particulars Effactive Interest Rate As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Borrowings at amortised cost
A. Secured
8.01% Series A Non convertible debentures 8.47% 4,450.33 -
{4,50C debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) **
8.34% Series B Non convertible debentures 8.70% 2,965.91 ) -
{3,000 debentures of Rs.1,000,0C0 each fully paid up) **
Less: current maturities of debentures - -
7,416.24 .
**Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 83.76 million for Series A and Series B.
Aggregate non-current borrowings - 7,416.24 -~
Aggregate current borrowings . -

(a) Terms of borrowings
On December 01, 2022 the Trust has issued and allotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of
Rs. 1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 750.00 million on private placement basis.

Repayment schedile of NCD

Particulars Amount Maturity date
Series A 4,500.00 01-12-2025
Series B 3,000.00 01-12-2027

{b} Security
(i} a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the lssuer’s current assets and other assets {excluding DSR and DSRA}, both present

and future, including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all the
loans and advances extended by the Issuer to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future {callectively, the “Issuer Loans”); (ii) the receivables,
right, title and interest and benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other
instruments (both present and future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with respect to the issuer Loans;
Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common security Trustee. (it} 2ll bank accounts of the Issuer, inciuding but not limited to the
Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts {including Cash Trap Sub Account) {if any} {excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened
to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thersof that may be opened in
accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in ali funds from time to time deposited therein {including the reserves), all designated
account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities representing all amounts credited to the Escrow
Account; )

{ii} a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities under
this Deed, and all amounts lying therein;

(iii} a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent) of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally
convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in al! the Project SPVs.

(iv) pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertitle debentures, non-
convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s) in all the Other SPVs and Holdco(s} {as applicable}.
{c} Interest
Interst shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each quarter.
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{12) Provisions

(13

. As at
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35}
Non-turrent :
Pravision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 31} 131 -
Compensated absences 0.58 .
{Total 1.89 B
Asat
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Marzch 31, 2022
[Refer Note 35)
Current :
Provision for employee benefits
Gratth'ty {refer note 31) .16 -
Compensated absences .47 -
{Total 0.63 .
Trade pupabins
. Asat
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
'Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 472 -
Yetal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 5842 -
enterprises
63.14 -
Trade payables
4~ to related parties 42.65 d
- to others 2048 -
63.24 -

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023:

Outstanding for following years from the date of transaction

N - Total
Fartulars Less than 1 year 12years 23years| Morethen

Ayears
An a1 Sheeek 31, 2023
“Tet2t autstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 472 - 472
Tautat outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprisas and small enterprises 5819 021 0.02 53.42
Disyuten dues of micro and small enterprises - - -
Dispyted dues of creditors other than micro entecgrises and small entarprizes ~ - -
Tatal ) 62,91 0.21 0.02 63.14

£33t March 32,2022
{Totat cutstanding dues of micsa and small enterprises
Yorat outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises
Bisputed dues of creditors other than micro xotessises and small RERRTpEITE

Tetal

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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Details of dues to Micro, Small, and Medium Esterprises under the Micro, Small and Med Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act]

Asat
Particulars

March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year a.72
Prinzioal amount due to micro and small entarprises -
Intesast dus on above v
Thir amount uf interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the

izt beyond the appointed day during each accounting year -

The:amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2008.
Theramount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -
The‘arnaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
5% small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Trade: pavaties e not- interest bearing and are normally settied on 30-30 days terms
For explanation an the Group's risk management policies, refer note 24

{14) Cther firmsncial liabilities

Asat
.Particulars . As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. {Refer Note 35)
Current -
Paysbis to related parties (refer note 29) 628.93 -
intergst accrued but not due on borrowings 167 -
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.28 “
Payable to employees 2.11 -
632.95 -
[15)  Othae liatisizips
Asat
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
({Refer Note 35)
Current
taduancs fram customer 155 -
Srannery dues 30.20 -
H 3L75 -

[This space is Intentionally left blank]




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Notes to conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

{16) Revenue from contracts with customers

(a)

(b)

{c}

(d)

Far the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Income from transmission charges . 930.54 -
Income from operation and maintenance 6.05 -
] 936.69 -

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long Term Transmission
Customers {LTTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreements {TSAs) executed by the respective SPVs with LTTCs. The TSAs are
executed for a peried of 35 years and have fixed tariff charges as approved by CERC {except some incentives/penalties relating to transmission assets
availabilities). Under the TSAs, the Group's performance obligation is to provide power transmission services. The Group is required to ensure that the
transmission assets meet the minimum availaoility criteria under the respective TSAs failing which could result in certain disincentives/penalties. The
performance obligation is satisfied over-time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's' perfarmance as the Group
perform, The payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of quarterly invoice by the customer. The Group receives payments as per the
pooling arrangements specified under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses)
Regulations (‘Pooling Regulations’). In the Point of Connection {PoC} mechanism, the transmission charges to be recovered from the entire system are
allocated between users based on their location in the grid. Under the PoC mechanism, all the charges collected by the Centraf Transmission Utifity
(i.e. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited) from LTTCs are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers from the pool in proportion of

the respective billed amount.
Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group bas not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures since
the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date.

Disagzresated revenue information

Year ended For the period from
Particulars . March 31, 2023 November 01, 2021
" to March 31, 2022
Income from transmission charges 530.64 -
Income from cperaticn and maintenance 6.05 -
Total 936.69 -
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
As at Asat §
Particulars March 31, 2022
. ™
arch 31, 2023 {Refer Note 35)
Trade receivable . 12.03 -
Unbilled revenue 655.45 -
Contract fizhdities 1.55 -
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 days. Contract liabilities include advances
Project wise break up of revenue from contracts with customers
As at As at
‘As a
Particulars March 31, 2022
M , 2023
arch 31, 20 (Refer Note 35}
Darbhanga - Metihari Transmission Company Limited 544,51 -
NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 392.18 -
Total 936.69 -
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of prafit and loss with the contracted pricg
For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 te March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35}
Revenue as per contracted price 936.69 -

Add : Surcharge . R
Less : Rebate o =
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(e}

For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Opening bafance
Unbilled revenue E -
Trade receivable - -
Contract liabilities - R
{A) - -
Amounts billed to customers 12.03 -
Power transmission services provided, but remaining unbilled as at year end 655.45 -
Advance received from customer {1.55}) B
8) 665.93 -
Closing balance
Unbilled revenue 655.45
Trade receivable 12,03 -
Contract liabilities {1.55) -
{A+8) 665.93
(17) Employee benefit axpense
For the perlod from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 3%, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Salaries, wages and bonus 5.99 -
Gratuity expenses {refer note 31) 0.16 B
Contribution ta provident and ather funds {refer note 31} 0.28 .
Staff welfare expenses 0.36 -
6.79 -
(18) Finance costs
For the period from
particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)
Interest on
Secured Non-convertible debentures 439.20 -
439.20 -
(19) Other expenses
For the period from
particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35}
Rates and taxes 1.05 -
Membership charges 0.27 -
Power and fuel 1.69 -
'Travelling and conveyance expenses 1.77 B
Rent {Expense relating to leases of low-value assets) 0.20 -
Mistallaneous expenses 2.84 -
7.82 -

Reconciliation of contract assets and liabilities

(a) Pursuant to the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated November 1, 2022, Project Manager is entitled to fees @ 15% of gross
operation and maintenance expenses (excluding insurance and statutory costs) incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Service tax at rate as
applicable effective from November 11, 2022. Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 includes amount of Rs
10.53 Miklion towards Project Manager fees. There are na changes during the year in the methodology for computation of fees paid to Project

Manager.

{b} Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated December 8, 2021, Investment Manager is entitled to fees of Rs. 55 million per annum
plus Goods and Service tax at rate as 2pplicable which is allocated to each project SPV equally. Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended March 31, 2023 includes amount of Rs. 24.18 Million towards investment Manager Fees. There are no changes during the year in the

methodology for computation of fees paid to Investment Manager.

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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{20) Capital and other commitments

(a) Capital Commitments
The Group has no capital commitments for the year ended March 31, 2023.

{b) Other Commitments .
The Group has entered into transmission services agreements {TSA) with long term transmission customers for the pericd of 35 {thirty five) years pursuant to which the Group
have committed to transmit power of contracted capacity and ensure minimum availsbility of transmission line over the pericd of TSA. The TSA contains provision for penalties in

case of certain defaults.

(21} Contingent flabifities

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
1,
March 31, 2023 {Refer Note 35
Dibker tatters 78.43 -
‘Total 78.43 -

i. During the financial year 2016-17, land owners had filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation for the value of land over which the transmission
line is passing, The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. Based on the
legal advice, the Group daes not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent 'Iiability of Rs. 61.65 million. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has
been made in these financial statements.

it. During the financial year 2020-21, land owners had filed a case with the Civil Court, Pehowa, Haryana towards cempensation for costs incurred on account of transmission line
pessing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. Based on the legal
advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclesad a contingent liability of Rs. 2.00 million. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been
made in these financial statements.

iii. During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corporaticn of India Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction {“IDC"}, incidental Expenses During
Construction {“1EDC”) and transmission charges respectively on account of delay in commissioning of transmission lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that the delay in
commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure events which ware beyond the control of the Company. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission concluded in
another matter through order dated 29/03/2018 passed in Petition No. 195/MP/2017 that delay in commissicning was not due to reasons attributable to the Company. Based on
the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a centingent liability of Rs. 14.78 million. Accordingly, no provision for any liabitity
has been made in these financial statements.

{22) Financial Instruments by category

Set out below is a comparisan, by class, of tha carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments as of March 31,2023

. Fair value through
Particulars . Amortised cost Fair value through other comprehensive | Total carrying value ! Total fair value

profit and loss N

income

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 65.35 - « 65.38 65.35
investments in mutua! funds - 1,306.42 - . 1,306.42 1,306.42
Other bank balances 176.24 - B 176.24 176.24
Trade receivables 12.03 B - 12.03 12.03
DOther financial assets 663.99 ~ - 663.99 663.99
Total 917.61 1,306.42 « 2.224.03 2,224.03
Financial llabiities
Borrowings 7,416.24 - - 7,416.24 7,3%4.03
Trade payables 63.14 - - 63.14 £3.14
Other financial liabilities 632.99 - - £532.99 63299
Totat 8,112.37 - - 8,112.37 8,090.16

Setcut below is a camparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2022 «

. . Fair value through Fair value through
Particulars Amortised cost ! g

other comprehensive { Total carrying value | Total fair value
profit and loss .
income

Financiai assets

a3k and cash equivalents . - . - -
sovestinents - - . “ -
Loans - - - - .
Taher bank balances . P - - .
Other Hoancialassets - - - . N
Total . - - - -
Financial Babilities

Borrowings - . . . -
Trade payabies . . - . -
Qther financiai liabilities . B - . .
 Tatat B . - - -

Carrying values of trads raceivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial lizbiiities approximate their fair values.
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(23] Fair value hierarchy
The foltowing table aresents fair vaiue hisrarchy of assets and liabilities as of

Particulars Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
Quoted prices in Sigmticant Signiicant
active markets (level 1) | observableinputs | unobservableinputs
(Level 2} {Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value

March 31, 2022

Quoted investments - lavestment in mutual funds - - -

March 31, 2023

Quoted investments - Investment in mutual funds 1,306.42 -

Asset for which fair value distlosures are given

March 31, 2022

Property, plant and equipment* - - ~

March 31, 2023

Proparty, alant and eguigmeny” - - 22,560.88

tiabilitiez for which falr value disclosuras are given

March 31, 2022

Horeoveings - - -

March 31, 2023

Borrowings - 7.364.03 -

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. .
Investment in mutual funds though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVs which is the quote for the day.

*Statement of net asset at fair value and statement of total returns at fair value require disclosures regarding fair value of assets {liabilities at considered at book values)., Since the
fair values of assets other than property, plant and equipment approximate their book values, hence only property, piant and equipment has been disclosed above.

The Trustis required to present the Statement of total assets at fair value and Statement of total returns at fair value as per SEB! Circuler No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20
October 2016 as a part of these financia! statements - Refer Statemant of Net assets at fair value and Statement of Total Returns at fair value.

The inputs to the valuation models for computation of fair value of transmission assets for the above mentioned statements are taken from observable markets where possikle,
but where this is nat feasible, 2 degree of judgement is requirad in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflaticn rates,
etc.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement requiced for disciosures categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with 3 quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2023 are as shown below:

Description of significant unchservable inputs to valuation:

2%

Significant unobservable inputs Input for Sensitivity of input to Incre.ase /(decrease)
March 31,2023 the fair value l\;:j:;fgfn
WACC 7.50% to 8.55% 0.5C% {1,204.00}
-0.50% 1,355.00
Tax rate (normai tax and MAT) MAT - 17.47% 2.00% (402.00)
Normal tax - 25.17% -2.00% 388.00
inflation rate for expenses 2.5% to 5% 20.00% (220.02)
-20.00% 184.42

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Groug’s principal financial lia es comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance
the Group's cperations. The Groug'’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and shart-term deposits and other financizl assats that derive
directly from its operations. .

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Tie Investment ma nager oversees the management of these risks. The management reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

The Risk Management policies of the Group are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Greup, to set appropriate risk limits and contrels and te monitor risks and
adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

Management has overall responsitility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Notes to ¢ i

Jated financial stat: for the year ended March 31, 2023

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated

{a)

(b}

Credit risk on financial assers

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including depesits with banks and other financial instruments. AsatMarch 31, 2023
the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of the group ara with its subsidaries,

The Group through its subsidiaries is engaged in transmission business under BOOM (Build, Own, Operate and Maintain) model and currently derive its revenue primarily from
BOOM contracts with long term transmission customers {'LTTC’). Being transmission licansee, the Group receives payments as per the pooling arrangements specified under the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {Sharing of Inter State Transmissicn Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010 ('Pooling Regulations'), In the PoC method, the transmission
charges to be recovered from the entire system are allocated between users based on their location in the grid. Under the PoC mechanism, ali the charges collected by the Central
Transmission Utility ['CTU"} from LTTC's are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers {"TSPs') from the pool in proportion of the respective billed amount. Due to
this, the TSPs are shielded against any potential default by a particular customer. If a pér:icular customer delays or defaults, the delay or shortfall is prorated amongst all the T5ps,
Based on past history of payments, payments due have always been paid and there have been no write-off's for due amounts.

Bue to the payment mechanism explained above as well as due to no history of any write-off's of payments which were due, the Group has not considered any expected credit
loss on the financial assets in the nature of trade receivables. During the various periods presented, there has been no change in the credit risk of trade receivables.

Credit risk from balances deposited/invested with banks as well as investments made in mutual funds, is managed by the Group's senior management in accordance with the
Group's Treasury policy approved by the Board of Directors. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within limits assigned te each

. counterparty, Counterparty limits are reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Board of -

Directors. The fimits are set ta minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss thraugh a counterparty's potential failure to make payments. Based on this
policy, the Group does not foresee any risk on account of credit losses, either in the scheduled commercial bank deposits which are made with AA+ rated banks and alsa in regard
to mutual funds which is primarily debt criented funds. No loss allowances have been provided for any trade receivables, or other recei from financing activities like cash
and bank deposits, mutual funds and other similar deposits, Also, there have been no modifications in contractual cash flows on fina ncial assets.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 is the <carrying amounts of investments, Trade Receivables, Cash and
bank balances and Other Assets as disclosed in Note 5,7. & and 4 respectively. However, the credit risk is low due to reasans mentioned above.

Market risk -
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of ¢hanges in market interest rates. The Trust’s borrowings are at
fixed rate, hence the Trust is not expased to Interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk .

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust did not have any
exposure in foreign currency as at March 31, 2623, . :

Equity price risk

The Trust’s investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those investments. Repcrts cn the
equity portfolio are submitted to the senior management on 2 regular basis. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves all eguity investment

" decisions. The Trust did not have any exposure of equity price risk as at March 31, 2023,

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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{c} Uguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with finandial libilities that are required to be settled by deljvering cash or
another financial asset. The Trust's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of fiquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligations, The Group requires funds both for short term operationat
needs as well as for long term investment programs mainly In growth projects. The Group dosely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise
these risks by generating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, kquid investments and sufficient committed fund facliities, will

provide liquidity.
The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit year taken to settle trade payables is abaut 30 days. The other payables are with
short term durations. The carrying are dto ber bie approximation of fair value. The table below surnmarises the maturity profile of the Group's finandial liabilities based on

contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars On demand Less than 3maonths | 3 months to 1 year 1yearto5years more than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2023

Non convertible debentures {Secured} - - - 7,416.24 - 7,415,24
Trade payables > 63.14 - d 4 63,14
Other financial liabilities ‘ 51118 12181 - - 63299
interest on borrowings  ° - 182.24 459.66 1,530.86 - 2.142.86

- 726.56 58147 8.947.20 ol 10,255.23

As at March 31, 2022 .

Non convertible debentures {Secured) . . v - # -
Trade payables . > - . “ >
Other financiat Habilities  * - . “ . B .

[This space is intentionally left blank}
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(25) Capital management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the unit holders of the
Trust. The primary objective of the Trust’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise unitholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unitholders (subject to the provisions of InviT regulations which
require distribution of at least 90% of the nat distributable cash flows of the Trust o unit holders), return capital to unitholders or issue new units. The Trust
monitars capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capita! plus net debt. The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The Trust
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans anc borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances excluding
discontinued operations.

As At As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 (Refer Note 35)
Borrowings 7,416.24 -
Trade Payables 63.14 -
Other financial liabilities 632.99 -
Less: Cash and other bark balances {241.59) -
Net debt [A] 7,870.78 -
Unit capital 15,624.79 -
QOther equity {515.19) -
Total equity capital {B] 15,109.60 -
Capital and net debt [C=A+B] - 22,980.38 ~
|Gearing ratio {%) [A/C] 0.34 -

In order to achieve this overali objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have been na breaches in the financial covenants of the Non
convertible debentures.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(26) Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year are:
Profit or loss section

Far the period from
Year ended November 01, 2021

March 31, 2023 tc March 31, 2022

{Refer Note 35}

Particulars

Current income tax:

Curcent income tax charge {37.84) -
Agdjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Deferred tax:

MAT credit entitlement for current year T -

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences . -

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {37.843) -~

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the indian statutery income tax rate to profit before taxis as

foliows:

For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021

March 32, 2023 ta March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)

Loss before tax (357.08) -
Enacted income tax rate in india 25.17% -
Computed expected tax (89.88) -
Effect of: )
impazt of exemption u/s 10{23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust
Non rgcognition of deferred tax on unabsorbed depeeciation and other timing differences 52.04 -
Income tax expense recopnised in the statement of profit and loss {37.84) -
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{27} Deferred Tax Lisbility {ne1)

Asat

Particulars As at 31 March 2623 March 31, 2022

{Refer Note 35)
Deferred Tax Assets .
Tax losses 2,292.38 -
Gratuity payable 043 -
Leave encashment payable 031 -
Totat 2,293.12 -
Defarred Tax LiabHities
Property, plant and equipment : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation for 1,567.11 -
Ancillary borrowing tost - .
Total 1,567.11 -
Net deferred tax asset recognised {DTA restricted ta the extent of OTL) - -

For the computaticn of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the Group has not considered tax holiday available under the Income Tax Act. The management based on
estimated cash flow workings, believes that since there will be losses in the initial years of the SPVs, no benefit under the Income tax Act would accrue to in
respect of the tax holiday. Management will re-assess this position at each balance sheet date. Tax losses represents unabsorbed depreciation. Unabsorbed
depreciation can be carried forward indefinitely.

(28) Earnings per unit

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during
the year. .

Diluted EPU amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued an conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

For the period from

Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35)

Lossafter ey for calouiating bagic and diluted earmings per unit stiributabla to unithalders (Rs. millian] {319.25) -
“Apighted sversge number 58 unRs in caltulsting basic and diuted 2arnings per unit (Mo, in million) . 6104
Face value por unit fin R} 100 -
Basic and difuted sarnings per unit lin Ast {5.23) .~
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(29) Related Party Disclosures
I List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

a) Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (EIYP)

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML

. List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1){zv) of the InviT Regulations
a) Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Spensor and Project manager
Edelweiss Reai Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL} - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

b) Promoaters of the parties to specified in {a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (wef March 29, 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (upto March 28, 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promaoters of ATSL

<] Directors of the parties specified in (3) above
i} Directors of SEPL

Avinash Prabhakar Rao

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Yenugopal Rangaswami

i) Directars of ERAML
Venkatchalam Ramaswamy
Subahoo Chordia
Sunil Mitra
Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. April 1, 2023}
Ranjita Deo :
Shiva Kumar
Bala C Deshpande (appointed as director w.e.f. April 1, 2023}

Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML

Ranjita Deo {(Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi {Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 1 February 2023)
Jalpa Parekh (Company Secretary)

iv) Directors of ATSL
Deepa Rath
Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Ganesh Sankaran

[This space is intentionally left blank]}
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.

Related party transactions:;

Particulars For the period from
Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
(Refer Note 353
ilssue of units
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 9,380.00
Sekura Energy Private Limited 2,380.00
Axis Bank Limited 500.00
Issue of NCD
Axis Bank Limited 3,000.00
interest expense an NCD
Axis Bank Limited 79.66
Project Implementation and Management
Sekura Energy Private Limited 10.53
Shared service cost
Sekura Energy Private Limited 18.83
Unit placement fees
Edelweiss Financial Services Uimited 11.09
Arranger fees for NCD facilities
Axis Bank Limited 8.89
Distribution to unit holders
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 11631
Sekura Energy Private Limited 29.51
Axis Bank Limited 3.97
Reimbursement of expenses
Sekura Energy Private Limited 102.45
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05
Avinash Prabhakar Rao 0.07
investment management fees
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 24.18
Trustee fees
Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.26
V. Related party balances:
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Receivable/ {payable)} (Refer Note 35)
'Trade payables
Sekura Energy Private Limited (31.85)
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {10.49)
Axis Trustee Services Limited (0.26)
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (0.05}
QOther financial liabilities
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (628.93)
interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Axis Bank Limited {0.65}

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.4(b){iv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEBI

Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as follow:

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

No acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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{30} Significant accounting judg i and

{a)

{b)

{c}

{3,

(o)

The preparation of the Trust’s Ct ed financial requires gement ta make judgr i and prions that affect the
raported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent fiabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabifities
affected in future years,

Judgements
In the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts racognised in the financial statements,

Applicability of ix D - Service Ce i of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group through its subsidiaries acts as a transmission licensee under the Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid licenses for 25 years. The subsidiaries
have entered into Transmission Services Agreements {"TSA") with Long Tarm Transmission Customers ("LTTC"} through a tariff based bidding process to
Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ("BOOM”) the transmission infrastructure for a periad 35 years. The management of thé Company is of the view that
the grantor as defined under Appendix D of ind AS 115 ({"Appendix D) requires transmissian licensee to obtain various approvals under the regulatory
framewerk to conduct its operations both ducing the period of the license as well as at the end of the license period, However, in the view of
management, the grantar’s involvement and approvals are to protect public interest and are not intended to contral, through ownership, beneficiai
entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual interast in the transmission infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. Accordingly,
management is of the view that Appendix D to Ind AS 115 is nat applicable to the Group. .

Cassification of Unitholders’ funds

Under the provisions of the InviT Regulations, Anzen is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash
flows of Anzen for each financial year, Accordingly, a portian of the unithalders’ funds contains a contractual abiigation of the Trust to pay to its
Unitholders cash distributions. The Unitholders’ funds could therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which contain both equity
and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars {No:
CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-Oct-2016 and No. CiR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29-Nov-2016) issued under the InvIT Regulations, the unitholders’ funds
have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBL Circular dated 20-Oct-2016
dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In liné with the above, the dividend payable to unit holders is recognised as liability
when the same is approved by the Investment Manager. )

Acquisition of Transmission SPVs classified as asset acquisitions

The Group acquires operational tr ission SPVs, The purchase consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission assets, All such
assets are operational assets with fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Agreements {TSAs] for 35 years. The only key activity for these
SPVs is the mai ce of the ission assets which is outscurced to third parties. There are few employees in these entities and no other

significant processes are performed for earning tariff revenues,

Based an evaluation of the aboue fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and alsa keeping in view the relevant
guidance on similar fact pattern available under accounting standards applicable in other jurisdictians, the 8 has ified the isition of
transmission SPVs as asset acquisition, .

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiiities within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its

+ assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future

-

{a

developments, however, may change dug to market changes or circumstances arising that are deyond the control of the Trust. Such changes are
reflectad in the assumptions when they accur,

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Cireulars issued under the InvfT Regulations require disclosurss relating ta net assets at fair vatue and total retums at fair value {refer note

23A and 238). In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries {which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages
indecendent qualified externat valuers to perform the valuation, The management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The gement reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the investment Manager quarterly to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects, The inputs to the valuation madels are taken from abservable markets
where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in ishing fair values. Jud; include considerations cf inputs
such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value, |

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuaria! valuation. An actuariat
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actua! developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invalved in the valuaticn and its long-term nature, a2 defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Further details about gratuity obligation are given in Note 31,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Nern-financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise of property, plant and equipments The provision for impairment/{reversal) of impairment of
progerty, plant & equipment and service concession receivable is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount of the property, plant & i and service co ion receivable has been computed by external indapendent
valuation .

experts based on value in use calculation for the underlying projects (based on discounted cash flow model}. On a periodic basis, according to the
recoverable amounts of individual portfolio assets computed by the valuation experts, the Trust tests impairment on the amounts invested in the
respective subsidiary ies, The valuation exercise so carried out considers various factors including cash flow projections, changes in interest
rates, discount rates, risk premium for market conditions. Based on the valuation exercise so carried out, there is no impairment for the year ended
March 31, 2023. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying prajects are disciosed and further explained in Note
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{d} Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the lossas can
be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that ean be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the fevel of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. For the calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the Trust
has not considered tax holiday available under the income Tax Act, The management basad on estimated cash flow workings for the SPVs, balieves that
since there will be losses in the initial years of the SPVs, no benefit under the tncome tax Act would accrue to those SPVs in respect of the tax holiday,

(31} Disclosures for Employee Benefits
a. Defined benefit plan - gratuity .
The Trust has a defined benefit plan {Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity olan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act,
‘employea who has completed five y=ars of sarvice is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of
service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completad five years or more of servite gats a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary

{fast drawn) for each compieted year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The said gratuity plan is unfunded,
The Trust parforms actuarial valuation of gratuity liability on an annual basis.

The following table sets out the components of net gratuity benefit expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Lass and amauats recognised in the

Balance Sheet for the resprcrive slans:

For the period from
Particulars Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Nate 35}
1 {Expensé recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for the year {includad in Note 20 Employee
Benefit Expense )
Service cost:

Lurrent service sast : 012 -
Interesteost 004 -
Total ntis charited to Statarmest of Profit and Loss 0.16 -

i [Expense feeopnized:in Gther Compreh interme for the yeor
Componeaty of soruariyl louses f fpaina on obl

Due to chavges in derrapraniic Sssumptions - .

Due to thanges in Gnaseial s, - -

Dot to changes in exgefionce sdhustniems. 0,01 -
Toral expeonse g in Other Comp: Income 0.01; -

Bt {Recandilistion of defined benefit shligasion
Gpening Batente of defined benefit pbigation o 3ex0unl of acquisitise 132 -
CUFFRNL Suricg 2o 0.12
intarast cost 0.04
Benedits paid . .
Sessiarialions Fna'nd from chanpes in rARISL A Song - B
Sevarint ioss f fing from changes In Sinanisl stsarmpticn 0.01) -
Actuarial laxs 2 {2ain) from oxgasbans ghisr sast gaary >
Liosiog Batance of defined benefit obization 1.47
# 1 The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations far the For the period from
tGroun’s plan are as under: Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Nate 35}
Discount Rate {p.2) 7.10% -
Exgriened rate ef Morma in saiany g 10.00% -
| Whithdrameat rates 15.00%
Mortality Rates Indian Assured Lives
. Mortality (2012:14) ULT | .
Sxpatted suErgge ? ing warking ife 5.5 years -
v {Sensitivity analysis of impact on Defined benefit obli {DBO} for changes in signiti For the period from
assumptions is as under: Year ended November 01, 2021
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
{Refer Note 35}
. iExpectad rate of increase in salary

0% basis point inrease 0.10 -

120 basis ooint decrsase (0.08}; -
Ciscournt Rate

00 Bass ooint increage {0.10) M

108 bagis point decrease 0.11.

Withdmwal rate

A busts poing increase {0.02} -

108 basis poing decrease 0.02 -

| Mortzlity lintrease in expecied life}

ingragsedn exnocted life by 1ysar Nezligible change Negligible change

increase in expected life by 3 years Negligible change Negligible change

b. Defined Contribution Plans

The Graup makes Provident Fund te defined cantribution plans for qualifying employees, Under the schemes, the group is required to contribute a
specified percantage of payroll costs te fund the benefits. The Groug has recognised provident fund contribution including administration charges
for the year ended March 32, 2023 of Rs. 0,21 millian as expense and contribution to pension fund for the year ended March 31, 2023 of Rs. 0,07
millian in Note 17 under the head ‘Contributions to Provident and Other Funds’,

[This space is intentionally left blank]
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(32) List of subsidiaries which are included in cansolidation and Anzen's effective holding therein are as under:

] hip =
Asat
N of subsidi
SR an Country of As At March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Incorporation (Refer Note 35)
Directly held by the Trust;
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Campany Limited ("DMTCL"} India 100%
NRSS XXX (B) Transmission Limited ["NRSS") India 100% -

Acquisition of Transmission Assets

{a}  During the year, Anzen acquired 100% of the equity share capital of DMTCL and MRS5 pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated November 01, 2022 viz.1,62,96,667
equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each of DMTCL and 98,32,143 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each of NRSS from EIYP in exchange of B3 million unitsissued by Anzen to EIYP
and subsequent closing on Navember 11, 2022,

{b)  As per the Securities Purchase Agreement, any amounts due to Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSs'|
pursuant to any future order passed by any competent authority pursuant to claims or appeals filed by Darbhanga - Motihan Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS
XXKI(8) Transmission Limited 'NRSS') until the Clasing Date (including any elaims or appeals filed in relation to the CEAC Order such as the appeal filad by DMTCL dated June 24,
2022) (“Future Recelvables”) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust/Darbhanga - Matihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXUB) Transmission Limited {'NRSS')
shall pursuant ta the receipt of final, nan-appealable arders of a court of eampetent jurisdiction, be transferred to Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based on the management
assessment of the possible outcome of these matters and timing therecf, the same is not considered as contingent consideration as per Ind A5 103 Business Combination.

(33) Segment reponting
The Trust's activities comprise of awning and investing in transmission and renewable energy assets to generate cash flows for distribution to unitholders. Based on the guiding
principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Dperating Sepments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind A5 -108 have not separately been
given,
Under Peint of Cannection {PoC) mechanism, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited {'PGCIL'} is designated as central transmission utility with the responsibility for billing and
collecting of usage charges fram Inter-State Transmission Services (ISTS) users. Hence the entira amount of trade receivables pertaining to transmission charges is receivahle
fram PGCII

(34) Subsequent event
On May 25, 2023, the Baard of directors of the Investment Manager approved 2 dividend of Rs. 2.42 per unit for the period January 1, 2023 ta March 31, 2023 to be paid on or
befora 15 days fram the date of declaratian,

(35) Previous year figures
The Trust was registered as on irrevacable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on Novernher 1, 2021 and as an Infrastructure Investment Trust under the Securities and
Exchange 3card of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Aegulations, 2014 on lanuary 18, 2022. However there were no transactions during the period ended November 3
2021 to March 31, 2022, The financial statements of the Trust for the year ended March 31, 2022 included as comparative financial infarmation in these financjal statements,
have been aparaved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have nat been subject to audit

For SR8 C&COLLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directars of
artered Accquntants Edelweiss Real Assets M; Limited
km Registratidp No: 324982E/E300003 [As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
- )
'I‘—(:-)_-" ~&,—«\.

g SR WO
peAmit Singh _Banjita Deo r Vaibhav Doshi i
Partner CIQ & Whale-time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number : 408869 DIN No. : 09609160
Place : Pune
Date : May 25, 2023

N\ Paresc—
——

Jalps Parekh
Cormnpany Secretary
Membership Number : Ad4507

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 25, 2023
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Standalone
Financial Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended

To

The Board of Directors of

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited,

(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
Unit 101, First Floor,

Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road,

Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East)

Mumbai - 400098

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date standalone
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the InvIT") consisting of the
Statement of Profit or Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as
required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated
November 29, 2016 (“SEBI Circular”) for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year
ended March 31, 2023 (‘the Statement”), attached herewith being submitted by the InvIT
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Statement:

i is presented in accordance with the requirements of Requlation 23 of the SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to
time read with the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29,
2016 in this regard; and

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit and
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the InviT for the
quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Results"” section of our report. We are independent of the InvIT in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’'s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial statements:
The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘the Management’) is responsibte

SRBC&COLLP alimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No, AAB 4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Flocr, Koikata- 700 016
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for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net
profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the InvIT in
accordance with the requirement of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Requlations,
2014, as amended from time to time (“the InvIT Regulations"), Indian Accounting Standards as
defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations. This responsibility includes design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Management is responsible for assessing the InvIT’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the InvIT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the InvIT's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the InvIT's internal controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the InvIT's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are:
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based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the InvIT to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023
being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third
quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us, as
required under Regulation 23 of the SEB| (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with SEB| Circular No CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated
November 29, 2016.

The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 included
as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone financial results, have
been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to
audit.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

‘r-/\/

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No.: 408869
UDIN: 23408869BGXKKR3152

Place: Pune
Date: May 25, 2023




Anzen india Energy Yield Plus Trust
SEBI Registration Number ; IN/invIT/21-22/0020

AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All amounts in INR millions, except as stated}

Sr. No jParticulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
{Refer note 2) {Refer note 2} {Refer note 2}
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited
1 jincome
Revenue from operations 524.84 143.45 668.29
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 4.21 9.28 13.43
Income from investment in mutual funds 3.78 20.55 24.33
Total income 532.83 173.28 706.11
2 Expenses
Finance costs 156.56 53.75 210.31
Legal and professicnal fees 0.66 0.45 111
Annual listing fee - 2.62 2.62
Rating fee . 2.66 2.66
Valuation expenses 0.29 0.61 0.90
Trustee fee 0.30 0.34 0.64
Audit fees
- Statutory audit fees 061 2.36 2.97
- Other services (including certification) -0.15 - 0.15
Other expenses 051 - 0.91
Fotal expenses 159.48 62.79 222,27
3 [Profit before tax and exceptional item {1-2) 373.35 110.49 2483.84
4 jExceptionatitems ~ - -
5  |Profit before tax (3 + 4) 37333 110.49 483.84
6§  iTax expense
(i} Current tax 311 11.94 15.08
(i) Deferred tax - - -
7 iNet profit for the period/year after tax (5 1 6) 370.24 98.55 468.79
8  itther Comprehensive Income
iterms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - -
8 [Total Comprehensive income for the period/year {(7+8) 370.24 98.55 468.79
10 . iUnit Capital {net of issue expensesj (Face value of Rs. 100 per unit) 15,624.79 15,624.78 15,624.73
11 [Earnings Per Unit (Rs. per unit} {refer note D under additional disciosures)
i) Basic 6.07 1.61 7.68
#} Diluted 6.07 1.61 7.68
Additional disclasure as per SEBI/HO/ DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated Aprif 13, 2018
Sr. No. |Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
(Refer note 2) {Refer note 2} (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited | Audited
1 |DebtEquity Ratic (in times) {Refer note 10} 047 0.47 0.47
2 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in times} {Refer note 10) 3.38 3.06 3.30
3 linterest Service Coverage Ratio {in times) (Refer note 10} 3.38 3.06 3.30
4 |Asser cover ratio [Refer note 10) 3.13 3.13 3.13
) Metworth [Refer note 10] 15,897.66 15,721.63 15,897.66
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Notes

The above Audited standalone financial results for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2023 has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘Investment Manager’) at their
respective meetings heid on 25 May 2023.

The audited standalone financial results comprises of the standalone Statement of Profit and Lcss; explanatory notes thereto and the
additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEB Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016
{“SEBI Circular”) of Anzen india Energy Yield Plus Trust (the "InvIT" or “Trust”) for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 {“standalone
financial resuits”} being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular {("InvIT Regulations). There are no transactions in
Statement of Profit and Loss between 1 November 2021 to 16 November 2022 and accordingly comparative periods are not presented.
The quarter ended 31 March 2023 standalone financial results are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2022, being the date of the end of nine months of the
current financial year, which were subject to fimited review.The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March
31, 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone financial results, have been approved by the
Investment Manager’s Board of Directors, but have not been subject to audit.

The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXX1(B)
Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP'} pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1
November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. The Trust issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600
miilion to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively,

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs. 2.42 per unit for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 to be

- paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1 million each for an
aggregate amount of INR 7,500 miliion on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 Nevember 2021 and as an infrastructure
Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Regulations, 2014 on 18 January
2022. .

The listed Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by the following

(a) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the lssuer’s current assets and cther assets (excluding DSR and DSRA), both
present and future, including: {i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and
under all the loans and advances extended by the Issuer to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future (collectively, the “Issuer Loans”); {ii)
the receivables, right, title and interest and benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and
agreements or any other instruments {both present and future} which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with
respect to the Issuer Loans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common Security Trustee. {iii} all bank accounts of the Issuer,
including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap Sub Account) {if any) {excluding the distribution
account and the accounts opened to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any Additional Debt) or any accounts in
substituticn thereof that may be opened in accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from time to time deposited
therein (including the reserves), ali designated sccount opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities

rearesentine ail amounts credited to the Escrow Account:
{b) @ first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities

under this Deed, and all amounts lying therein; .

{c) a first pari passu pledge over 100% {one hundred percent) of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally
convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs.

{d) pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures,
non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Haldco(s} in alf the Other SPVs and Holdco(s} (as applicable).

The Trust retained its credit ratings of "CRISIL AAA/Stable” from CRISIL as on 6 April 2023 and "IND AAA/Stable" from India Ratings 2s on
20 April 2023. )

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows:

. Asset cover = Total Assets having Pari-Passu cha rge/(Long Term Borrowings + Interest accrued on Long term debt)

ii. Debt Equity Ratio = Long Term Borrowings/ {Unitholders' Equity + Retained Earnings)

iii. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest and Tax / {interest Expense + Principal Repayments made during the period}
iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest and Tax / Interest expense

. Net worth = Unitholders’ Equity + Retained Earnings
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

iDescription Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
(Refer note 2} {Refer note 2) (Refer note 2)
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Avudited

inflow from Project 5pv Distributions

Cash flows recpived Faim SPVs in the form of interesy Z'ac;rg'eﬁ‘imeresz £ suditiong 527.40 185.47 712.87

interest

Add: Cash flows recelved from $pVs inthe form of dividend : « - -

Add: Cash flows From the SPYs towards the: =payment of the debt prmidafm the, - 626.00 626.00

SPUs by the Anzen Trust andf ar redemption of debentures issyen by $PVs to the

Anzen Trust

Add: Cash flowes fram the SPVs through capieal reduction by way of 2 buy back or any - . -

other means.ss permitied; subject to applicable faw

Infiow from investiments J Rssets

Add: Cash fiows from sale of equity shares or 3ny other investments.in SPyvs ad}ustedk - - «

foramicunts reinvested or plenned 1 be rainvested

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the Sty not distributed pursuant 10 an earfier plan - - -

toreinvest, or if sich proceeds are not ndded to be i sted subsequanty -

Inflow from Liablities

Add: Cash flows from adgitionat borrewings fincluding debentures other . 15,000.00 15,000.00

securities), fresh issuance of upits, ete,

Other inflows

Add: Any other income secruing 3t the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as 7.11 27.98 35.09
- [desmed necessary by the nvestmen Marniager, incloding but pot lirnited 0 interest

/ FERUrA Of surlus cash invested by the Anzen Trust

Totalzash inflow at the Anzen Trust level 18} 534.51 15,839.45 16,373.96

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes )

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expeases. incurrid 8t the Anzen Trust, {321.45) (117.31) {438.76)

including init ot lmited 10 the fots oF the Investmant Menager, Projecs Manager,

Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Crediz Rating Agency, etc.

Less: income rax Gf applicable} for standiions Anzen Trust and / or paymentof other {3.12) {11.94) (15.05)

statutory dues

Qutflow for Uabiities ‘ : ;

Less: Repsyment of thirt-party debt {peincips 7/ redeemeiie prafarence shares Ji . - H

debentures, erc., net of any debr raised by refinanciog of existin g debt :

1

Less: Net cash ser aside to comply with borcowing requirements such a5 DSRA, - (155.00) {155.00)

mirimum eash balance, er.

Qutflow for Assets

Less: Amount invested in any of the SPys - {15,071.00)] ' {15,071.00)

Less: Anmicunts set aside 2o be irvested or planned 1o be invested, as desmed - - -

necessary by the Investment Manager in wompiiance with the InviT Regulations

Less: § ts including acg 1 of other SPVs - - -

Other Quttiows )

Less: &ny grovision or reserve desmed necessary by the favestment Maneger for 167.20 {269.67) 102,47}

penses which may be due in future

Add / Less: Amounts 2dded/ rewined in accordance with the transaction dotuments ~ - N

artheloan agreements inrefation 20 the Anzen Trust

Less: Any othér expense of the Anzen Trist nor captured hersin as deemed - - -

necessary by the inivestment Manager ]

Add [ Less: Any other adjustment o be undertaken by the Board tp ensufe that - - =

there is no doshie counting of the same item for the above calculatinns

Total ash sutfow/ratertion at the Arten Trust level {8} (157.36) {15,624.92) {15,782.28)

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C= {A+B} 377.15 214.53 581.68

* Rs 195,92 million distribution has been made during the year.
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Contingent liabilities .
The Trust has no contingent liabilities as on 31 March 2023.

Statement of Commitments
The Trust has no commitments as on 31 March 2023.

Statement of Earnings per unit:

Basic earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to Unit helders b

outstanding during the period.

v the weighted average number of units

Diluted earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

Particulars Quarter ended | Quarter ended Year ended
{Refer note 2) | {Refer note 2) {Refer note 2)
' 31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributable to unitholders 370.24 98.55 468.79
Weighted average number of units in caleulating basic and diluted earnings per unit {No. in million) 61.04 61.04 61.04
Earnings Per Unit
Basicand diluted (Rupees/unit) {Not annualised for the quarter) 6.07 1.62 7.68

R
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ii)
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iv)

Statement of Related Party Transactions:
List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Entity with control over the Trust
Edelwelss Infrastructure Yield Plus

Entity with significant influence over the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML

Subsidiaries
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {DMTCL)
NRSS XXX! {B) Transmission Limited {NRSS)

List of related parties as per Reguiation 2[1}{zv) of the InviT Regulations

Parties to Anzen

Sekura Energy Private Limited {SEL} - Sponsor and Project manager

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML} - Investment Manager

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Promoters of the parties to Anzen specified in [a} above

Edelwaiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {w.e.f. 29 March 2023} Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investements Private Limited {upto 28 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promoters of ATSL

Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in {a) above
Directors of SEPL

Avinash Prabhakar Rag

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

Directors of ERAML

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy

Subahoo Chordia

Sunil Mitra .

Prabhakar Panda {ceased to be director w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo

Shiva Kumar

Baia C Deshpande {appointed as director w.e.f. 1 April 2023)

Key Managerlal Personnel of ERAML

Ranjita Deo {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer}
Vaibhav Doshi {Chief Financial Officer) {w.e.f. 1 February 2023}
Jalpa Parekh {Company Secretary)

Directors of ATSL
Deepa Rath

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Ganesh Sankaran
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Related party uansactions:

Partioulars Name of reiated party Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
{Refer note 2} {Refer note 2) (Refer nate 2 R
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
- Audited L ited Audited
e oF units - Ednhweiss infrastaucture Yield Plus - $,380.00 5,380.90
sssue af units Sehury Enetgy Privase Limited - 2,380.00 2,380.00
1ssue of uaity Axis Bank Limioad » $00.00 500.00
ixsue of NCO Axis Bank Limited . 3,000.00 3,000.00
ringd on NOD Axts Bank Limited . 59.25 041 79.66
Joterast income on idan given Dasbiranga - Mgthan T Company Limited 259.69 53,56 313.25
fatprestincomi an Losn gven NRSS XXX! (B} Transmission Limited 18657 56.82 243,49
HRerst ity o 00D Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 3893 13.50 5883
mitsrest indome 8nOLD NRSS XXXI {B) Transmission Limited 2807 4,00 3207
Interesd intomi on NCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 1148 9.7 20.55
Loan givan: Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited - §,910,00 5,910.00
1oan given: NRSS XXXI {B) Transmission Limited . 5,030.00 5,030.00
Loan fvpaid Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited - 327.50 327.50
ioan regakd NRSS XXXI {8) Transmission Limited . 298,50 298,50
Réimbursemen of dxpeniies Sekura Energy Private Limited 14,60 86,99 10158
Reimburserment of expenses Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05 “ 0.05
Unit placemoent fees Edelweiss Financlal Services Limited - 1109 1109
Arranger Tows o HOD ficitittes Axis Bank Limited - 88s 889
Trustss Fae Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.02 0.24 0.26
Digteibution 6wt holders Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 11631 - 11631
Sinteibastinn 10 guit baldars Sekura Energy Private Limited 29.51 - 29.51
Distrizution wunit hokiers Axis Bank Limited .97 ~ 397
i inTauity of DMTCL  {Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus . 5,453,00 5,453,00
fnvestment i Eglity of %R5S Edelwei ure Yield Plus - 4,132.87 4,132.87
jinestoment in OCD of DMTCL Edelweiss infrastructure Yield Plus - 877.10 877.10
tmsestmen in GOD of NASS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus N 632.44 632447
Ineestmentin NCD of DMTTL iEdelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - 29100 251.00
Related pasty balances:
Particulars Name of related party Asat Asat
. 31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022
[Receivable/ {Payable)} . [Receivable/ {Payable)]
(Refernote2) = (Refer nate 2).
Audited di
Loan to subsidiaries Darbhanga - Matihari Transmission Company Lirmited 6,582.50 £,582.50
Loan to subsidiaries NRSS XXX! (B} Transmission Limited 4,731,50 4,731.50
Interest receivable en NCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited . 257
Trade payables Sekura Energy Private Limited {13.59) (86.39}
Trade payabies Edelweiss Financial Services Limited . {11,09)
Trade payables Axis Bank Limited > {8 89)
Trade payables IEdelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {0.05} -
Trade payables . Axis Trustee Services Limited {0.26} {0,24)
interest accrued but not due on borrowings  §Axis Bank Limited {0.66) {0.68)
Outstanding OCD Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission, Company Limited 8§77.10 877,10
Ouststanding CCC NRSS XXXI (B) Transmissicn timited 632.44 632.44
Outstanding NCD 4Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 291.00 281.00
Betails in respect of related party involving isition of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.4(bj(iv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEB! Circular dated 20 October 2016 3re as
follow: ' . '

For the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023:
Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motihari Transmissicn Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXX!{B) Transmission Limited {'NRSS") from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield

Plus {'EIYP") pursuant to share p

dated on 1 N b

million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in UMICL and NRSS respectively.

Summary of valuation report )

{Parsicutars DMTCL NRSS

’Enmr;:aisu value as at 30 June 2022 12,907.C0 9,897.00
Mrthed of valuation Discaunted Cash #iow Ciscounted Cash-Flowi
(Ehseount rte (WALT) 245% 8.38%1

2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022, The Trust issued its units amounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs, 3,600

Enterps;ise value as disclased above are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the InviT

Regulations,

Changes in Accounting poticies

There is no change in the Acccunting pelicy of the Trust for thevquartzr and year ended 31 March 2023.

" 4 oo d

Figures for previous periods have been regrauped / i <o V.

" For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited

(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust}

Renpitey

Whele Time Birector and Chief Investment Officer

DIN No. : 09603160
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2023
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Chartered Accountants (Near Don Bosco School)
Pune - 411 006, India

Tel :+91 20 6603 6000

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Consolidated Financial
Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended

To

The Board of Directors of

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited,

(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust)
Unit 101, First Floor,

Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road,

Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East)

Mumbai - 400098

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date consolidated
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (“the InviT") and its Subsidiaries
(together “the Group™) consisting of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of
Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 (“SEBI
Circular™) for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 (‘the
Statement’), attached herewith being submitted by the InvIT pursuant to requirement of
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended
from time to time read with the SEBI circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Statement:

i includes the results of the following entities;
a. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited

b. NRSS XXXI(B) Transmission Limited

ii. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to
time read with the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29,
2016 in this regard; and

iii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated net
loss and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group
for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Results” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit o

evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

SRBC&COLLP, alimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Reqgd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Flocr, Kolkata 700 016
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Chartered Accountants

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual financial
statements. The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (‘the Management”)
is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair
view of the consolidated net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial
information of the Group in accordance with the requirement of InviT Regulations, Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InviT Requlations. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Management, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of entity’'s internal control.
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Chartered Accountants

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including
the disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial
information of the entities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors,
to express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the InvIT and such other entities
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide
those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the quarter ended

March 31, 2023 being the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to
the end of the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited
review by us, as required under the Regulation 23 of SEBI (Infrastructure Investments Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 date November 29, 2016.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 included
as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated financial results, have
been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to
audit,

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

AT
Pe

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No.: 408869
UDIN: 23408869BGXKKT5790
Place: Pune

Date: May 25, 2023




Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust
SEBI Registration Number : IN/InviT/21-22/0020
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{All amounts in INR million, except as stated]
Sr. No |Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
’ {Refernote 2and 3} | {Refernote2and3) | [Refer note 2 and 3}
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited
1 lintome
(Revenue from contracts with customers 597.84 338.85 936.69
Income from investment in mutual fund 2446 26.91 51.37
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 4.22 4.40 8.62
Other income 1.78 0.74 2.52
ITotal income 628.30 370.90 999.20
2 Expenses
Operation and maintenance expense 2331 7.29 30.60
Employee benefits expense 4.59 220 6.79
Finaree costs 156.12 283.08 439.20
Degratiatien expense 491.62 278,51 770.13
iwestment management fees 16.00 813 24.18
Project management fees 5.17 5.36 10.53
Insurance expenses 14.99 5.88 20.87
Legal and professional fees 25.08 10.51 3559
Annual listing fee - 2.62 262
Rating fee - 2.66 2.66
Valuation expenses 3.28 0.62 0.90
Trustee fee 0.30 0.34 054
Payment to auditors
- Statutory audit fees 1.23 2.50 373
- Other services {including certifications) 0.02 - 202
Otfier expenses 4.95 2.87 7.82
Total expenses 743.66 612.62 1,356.28
3 {Loss before tax and exceptional item {1-2) {115.36) {241.72} {357.08)
4 [Exceptional items - 7 - =
S  {Loss before tax (3 + 4) {115.36) {241.72) {357.08)
6 {Taxexpense
{i} Current tax {26.21H (11.63) (37.84)
_$4i1} Deferred tax - . -
7 iMetloss for the period/year after tax (5 + 6) {88.15} £230.08} {315.28}
% iOther Comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss ) {223} 0.02 0%
9 [Total Comprehensive Income for the pesiod/year (7 + 8) (83.28)) (230.07) {319.25}
Loss for the period/year
Attributable to:
Unit holders (89.15) 123008} {319.24)
Mon-Controlling interest - . -
Total comprehensive income for the period/year:
Attributable to :
Unit holders {89.18) (230.07) {318.25)
Non- Controlling interest - - -
Earnings per unit {Rs. per unit)
{rafer note E under additional disclosures)
~Bagic (1.46} {3.77) (5.23)
<Diluted (1.46) (3.77) (5.23)
Additional disclosure as per SEBI circular SEBIIHOIDDHS/DDH$/CIR/P12018/71 dated April 13, 2018
Sr. No. {Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended
{Refer note 2 and 3) {Refer note 2 and 3} (Refer note 2 and 3)
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited
1 iAsset Cover (in times] (Refer note 10) 3.14 3.28 3.14;
2 jDebt Equity Ratio {in times) {Refer note 10} 0.49 0.48i 0.49]
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in times) (Refer note 10) 3.41 1.13 1.94]
4 Interest Service Coverage Ratio {in times) (Refer note 10) 341 1.13] 1.94
5 {Networth (INR in Million) {Refer note 10) 15,109.60Q; 15,393.01 15,109.60
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Notes

The above Audited consolidated financial results for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and period ended from 11 November 20622 to 31
March 2023 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers
Limited (‘Investment Manager’) at their respective meetings held on 25 May, 2023.

The audited consolidated financial results comprises of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the
additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEB| Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016
(“SEBI Circular”) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (the "InvIT" or “Trust”) for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and period ended 11
November 2022 to 31 March 2023 (“consolidated financial results”) being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of
Regulation 23 of the SEBI {Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular
{“InvIT Regulations).” The quarter ended 31 March 2023 consolidated financial results are the derived figures between the audited
figures in respect of period ended from 11 Novemeber 2022 and 31 March 2023 and the published year to date figures upto 31
December 2022, which were subjected to fimited review.The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to ‘March 31,
2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated financial results, have been approved by the
Investment Manager’s Board of Directors, but have not been subject to audit.

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited
{'DMTCL') and NRSS XXXI{B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS'} from Edelweiss infrastructure Yield Plus {'EIYP') pursuant to share purchase
agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. Accordingly, the audited consolidated financial
information is presented for the year ended 31 March 2023 and comparative periods are not presented.

Pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors of the investment Manager, the Trust has appointed Sekura Energy Private Limited {'SEPL’)
as Project Manager for all Project SPVs. As per the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated 1 November 2022, the
Project Manager is entitled to fees at 15% of gross operation and maintenance expenses (excluding insurance and statutory costs)
incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable effective from the closing date i.e. 11 November 2022,
There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Project Manager.

Investment manager fee has been considered based on the investment Management Agreement dated 8 December 2021. The
Investment manager fee is INR 55 million per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable which is allocated to each Project
SPV equally. There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Investment Manager.

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distributicn of Rs. 2.42 per unit for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 ta be
paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, tisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1 million each for an
aggregate amount of INR 7,500 million on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis.

The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 November 2021 and as an Infrastructure
Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on 18 January
2022.

Formufae for computation of ratios are as follows :

i. Asset cover = Total Assets/{Long Term Borrowings + Interest accrued on Long term debt)
i. Debt Equity Ratio = Long Term Borrowings/ {Unitholders’ Equity+Retained Earnings)
iii. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax / (Interest Expense + Principal Repayments made during the

period)

iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratic = Earni ngs before Interests, Depreciation and Tax / Interest Expense
- Net worth = Unitholders' Equity+Retained Earnings
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- A} Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

11 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016

{All amounts in INR million, except as stated)

Description Quarter ended {Refer; Quarter ended Year ended
note 2and 3) {Refer note 2and 3} | [Refer note 2 and 3)
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023

Audited Unaudited Audited

Inflow from Project SPV Distributicns

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest / accrued interest / additional interest 527.40 185.47 712.87

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend - ' “ -

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen - 626.00 626.00

Trust and/ or redemption of debentures issued by SPVs to the Anzen Trust

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means asi - - -

permitted, subject to applicable law

inflow from Investments / Assets -

Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts! - - -

reinvested or planned to be reinvested :

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if - - -

such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently ~

Inflow from Liabilities -

Add: Cash fiows from additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of - 15,000.00 15,000.00

units, etc.

Other Inflows -

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured 2bove, as deemed necessary by 7.11 27.98 35.09

the Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by thel

Anzen Trust

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust fevel {A) 534.51 15,839.45 16,373.96

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes .

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited (321.45) {117.31) (438.76)

to the fees of the investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating

Agency, etc. .

Less: income tax {if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and / or payment of other statutory dues (3.11}) {11.94) (15.05)

Outflow for Liabilities

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net - - -

of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, - {155.00) {155.00)

etc. '

j0utflow for Assets -

Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs - {15,071.00) (15,071.00)

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or plannad to be invested, as deemed necessary by the - - B

Investment Manager in campliance with the InviT Regulations

Less: Investments including acquisition: of other SPVs - - -

Other Qutflows -

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may 167.20 ] (269.67) {102.47)

be due in future

Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan . -

agreements in relation to the Anzen Trust

Less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the - - -

Investment Manager )

Add / Less: Any other sdjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double - -

counting of the same item for the above calculations

. {157.38) {15,624.92) {15,782.28)
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = {A+B} 377.15 214.53 591.68

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year.
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B)

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of underlying SPVs

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL")

Description

Quarter ended

Quarter ended

Year ended

31-Mar-2023

31-Dec-2022

31-Mar-2023

Audited

Unaudited

Audited

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) (A}

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L - ]
Add: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any} on Ioans availed from / debentures issued
to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account

Adijustment of Non-cash items

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal,
amortisation as per profit and loss account.

Add [ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these
items}, including but not limited to ]
= Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a hablhty recognised in profit and Ioss
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;

= Interest cost as per effective interest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid};

» Deferrad tax, lease rents, provisions, etc.

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet

Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital

Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of assets / investments

Add: Net proceeds (after appliceble taxes) from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds
reinvested or planned to be reinvested.

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments not distributed pursuant
to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently.

same will be deducted) and

Less: Capital expenditure, if any.

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any.

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net
of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt.

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance,

etc.

Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities), fresh issuance of |

jequity shares / preference shares, etc.
{Less: Payment of any other liabilities {not covered under working capital)

Other Adjustments

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses / liabilities,
which may be due in future.

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the lcan
agreements in relation to the SPVs.

Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double]
counting of the same item for the above calculations.

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the
Investment Manager in line with the InviT Regulations.

{136.89)

310.10

157.65.

(©17)

{1.68)
{0.19)

101.72
{4.85)

{104.55)

(111.81)

81.83

89.31

{0.64)

75.26
3.69

287.26
(3.67)

{4.09)

(280.77)

(248.70)

391.94

246.96

(8.81)

73.58
3.50

388.98
(8.52)

{7.02)

(385.33)

Total Adjustments {B)

447.09

695.28

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = {A+B}

310.20

446.58

During the period, amount being at least 30% has aiready been distributed to Anzen.

n
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NRSS XXX1{B} Transmission Limited {'NRSS'}

Description

Quarter ended

Quarter ended

Year ended

31-Mar-2023

31-Dec-2022

31-Mar-2023

Audited

Unaudited

Audited

itess: Capital expenditure, if any.

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone} {A)

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L

Add: interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from / debentures issued
to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account

Adjustment of Non-cash items

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and
amaortisation as per profit and loss account.

Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income {net of actual cash flows for these!
items), including but not limited to

* Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a hiability recogmsed in profit and loss}
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;

* Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid);

« Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc.

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet

Add / less: Decrease / increase in working capital

Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of assets / investments

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes} from szle of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds
reinvested or planned to be reinvested.

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments not distributed pursuant
to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently.

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any.

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet ’

Less: Repayment of third-party debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net
of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt.

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance,
etc.

Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities}, fresh issuance of
equity shares / preference shares, etc.

Less: Payment of any cther liabilities {not covered under working capital)

Other Adjustments

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses / liabilities!
which may be due in future.

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the lcan
agreements in relation to the SPVs.

Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double
ccunting of the same item for the above calculatiens.

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the
Investment Manager in line with the InviT Regulations.

Total Adjustments {B)

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = (A+B}

(77.95)

214.74

89.41

(3.73}

{0.13)

31.45
{3.93)

{89.41)

7273

50.67

58.50
118

167.62
(2.42)

(142.47)

(167.36)

287.47

140.08

{3.36)

58.50
1.06

199.07
{6.35)

{195.63)

273.65

195.70

During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen.
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E}

Contingent liabilities

Particulars ’ ) As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022
Audited Unaudited
Other matters {refer note below} . 78.43 78.43

During the financial year 2016-17, land owners have filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation for the value of land over which the
transmission line is passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is
payable. Based on the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of INR 61.65 million.

During the financial year 2020-21, land owners have filed a case with the Civil Court, Pehowa, Haryana towards compensation for costs incurred an account of transmission
line passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. Based on
the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed 2 contingent liability of INR 2 million.

During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corperation of india Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction {"IDC”}, Incidental Expenses
During Construction {“IEDC") and transmission charges respectively on account of delay in commissioning of transmission lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that
the delay in commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure events which wera beyond the control of the Company. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
concluded in another matter through crder dated 29/03/20189 passed in Petition No. 195/MP/2017 that delay in commissionihg was not due to reasons attributable to the
Company. Based on the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of INR 14.78 million.

Statement of Commitments:
The Group has enterad into transmission services agreement (TSA} with long term transmission customers pursuant te which the Group has to transmit power of contracted
capacity and ensure minimum availability of transmission line over the period of the TSA. The TSA contains provisicn for penalties in case of certain defauits.

Statement of Earnings per unit:
Basic earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the lass for the period attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during
the period.

Ciluted earnings per unit amounts are calculzted by dividing the loss attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period
plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on canversion of ali the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended

{Refer note 2 and 3) | (Refer note 2 and 3) { {Refer note 2 and 3)
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023
Audited Unaudited Audited

Loss after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU attributakle to unitholders (89.15} {230.09) {319.24}

Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted EPU {No. in million) €1.04 61.04 61.04

Earnings Per Unit {Not annualised for the quarter}

Basic and Diluted {Rupees/unit} {1.46) ) (3.77) {5.23)
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a)

b)

a)v

b}

¢

i}

i)

iii}

Statement of Related Party Transactions:
List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Entity with control over the Trust
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus

Entity with significant influence over the Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited {SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML

List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1){zv} of the InviT Regulations
Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Sekura Energy Private Limited {SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {ERAML) - Investment Manager

Axis Trustee Services Limited {ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust

Promoters of the parties; to specified in {a) above

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Promoters of SEPL
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {w.e.f 29 March 2023} Promoters of ERAML
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {upto 28 March 2023) Promoters of ERAML
Axis Bank Limited Promoters of ATSL

Directors of the parties specified in {(a) above
Directors of SEPL

Avinash Prabhakar Rac

Sushant Sujir Nayak

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami

Directors of ERAML

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy

Subahoo Chordia

Sunil Mitra

Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. 1 April 2023)
Ranjita Deo

Shiva Kumar

Bala C Deshpande {appointed as director w.e.f. 1 April 2023)

Key Managerial Personnei of ERAML

Ranjita Dec {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer)
Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) {w.e.f. 1 February 2023}
jalpa Parekh {Company Secretary)

Directors of ATSL
Deepaz Rath

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Ganesh Sankaran
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Related party transactions:

{All amounts in INR miliion, except as stated)

Quarter ended

Particulars Quarter ended Year ended
{Refer note 2 and 3) {Refer note 2 and 3} (Refer note 2 and 3)
31-Mar-23 31-Dec-22 31-Mar-23
Audited Unaudited Audited
issue of units _
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus - 9,380.00 9,380.00
Sekura Energy Private Limited - 2,380.00 2,380.00
Axis Bank Limited - 500.00 500.00
Issue of NCD
Axis Bank Limited - 3,000.00 3,000.00
Interest expense on NCD
Axis Bank Limited 59.25 2041 79.66
Project Implementation and Management
Sekura Energy Private Limited 5.17 536 10.53
Shared service cost )
Sekura Energy Private Limited 13.60 5.23 18.83
Unit placement fees
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 11.09 11.09
Arranger fees for NCD facilities
Axis Bank Limited - 8.89 8.89
Distribution to unit holders
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 116.31 B 116.31
Sekura Energy Private Limited 29.51 - 2951
Axis Bank Limited 3.97 - 3.97
Reimbursement of expenses :
Sekura Energy Private Limited 1531 87.14 102.45
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05 - 0.05
Avinash Prabhakar Rao 0.07| 0.00* 0.07
Investment management fees
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 16.00 8.18 24.18
Trustee fees
Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.02 0.24} 0.26
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IV. Related party balances:

iz

13

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-23 31-Dec-22
{Receivable/ {payable)}| (Receivable/ (payable)}
Audited Unaudited
Trade payables ’
Sekura Energy Private Limited {31.85) {102.53)
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {10.49) (8.18)
Axis Trustee Services Limited {0.26) (0.24)
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {0.05) -
Unit placement fees
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - {11.09)
Other financial liabilities
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus {628.93) {1,116.67)
interest payable on NCD
Axis Bank Limited {0.66) {0.66)

* amounts below INR 0.01 million

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as required by Para 4.4(b){iv}) of

Section A of Annexure A to SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2015 are as follow:

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

No acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Changes in Accounting policies

There Is no change in the Accounting policy of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Figures for previous periods have been regrouped / reclassified wherever considered necessary.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited
{as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust}

==

Ranjita Deo

Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer

DIN No. : 09605160
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2023

BY

&

e

INITIAL FOR IDENTIFiCATION

{S-R.B.C.& CO. LLP




	8. Anzen_Audit Report_Standalone_FS_M23
	6. Anzen_SFS_M23
	7. Anzen_Audit Report_Conso_FS_M23
	5. Anzen_CFS_M23
	4. Anzen_Result_Standalone_FS_M23
	2. Anzen_SFS_Results_M23
	3. Anzen_Result Conso_FS_M23
	1. Anzen_CFS_Results_M23

